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CASE ·NO. 11 

',The Lokenathpur Case-1877 
The facts of this mysterious case, which happened in 

1877-78, are as follows ;-On the roth June, 1877, Mr. G., 
~anager of the Lokenathpur Factory, wrote the following ' 
lett~r to 1':1r. S., the Magistrate of the Choo,ldanga Sub-divi­
sion in Nuddea ;-

.. My dear S-, 
.. Ramgati Bi.swas. the T .. hsiJdar of KooltolJa, has been f!:,uud o\'er 

Rs. 400 short of his collections, and I have a case ready to bring against 
him in your Court to-morrow. This morning at daylight his horse was 
found near the Boonapara line, and a saddle, a Imnle. and some clothes, I 
suppose belonging to him. under a tree. near the plaee ; 80 something is up 
I have given information to the Police at D"moorhnod-i 

Yours sincerely, 
G. A G.---

A few hours afterwards Mr. G. wrote another letter in­
forming the same Magistrate that the Police h:\d found the 
body of Ramgati Biswas in a tank near the factory. The 
body was examined by a doctor, who declared that in his 
opinion the man had been killed before his body was thrown 
into the tank, while two men alleged that they had seen 
deceased at the factory the preceding evening; one of them 
stated that he had accompanied the deceased to the factory, 
tha.t the latter, carried with him some ornaments in order to 
satisfy his debts to Mr. G., that Mr. G. refused to allow the 
deceased to leave the factory until he had paid the full 
amount of his debt, and that the witness returned home leaving 
the deceased in charge of the factory servants. The other 
witness stated that he had witnessed an altercation between 
Mr. G. and the deceased. Acting upon these statements and 
other evidence which seemed corroborative, Mr. S., th~,: Ma­

gistrate, arrested the entire factory staff, with the exceiltion 
of Mr. G. and his head native servant, who W'e~, however, 
regarded in the light of accused persons. 

The Investigation into the circumstances attending .the 
supposed murder wa.s begun by the Police under the personal 
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supervision of Mr. 5., and in the course .of this investigation, 
cenai,n statements, in the nature of confessions, wore made.bY 
some of the prisoners. This inquiry was afterwafds conduct .. · 
ed by Mr. S. personal1y for several days, in the course of 
which he examined many witnesses, the evidence of some of 
whom clearly indicated that Ramgati Biswas' death must. 
have been due to certain injuries which he had. in aU proba­
bility, recei\'ed at the Lokenathpur factory. About this time 
certain communications passed between Mr. S. and the District 
Magistrate and the Commissioner of the Division. the precise 
nature of which is not known; and in the end Mr. S. dis­
charged all the accused. The result of this elaborate enquiry 
was embodied not in a judgment. but in what Mr. S. called 
.. an official report," and that resul t was to the effect that in 
his opinion Ramgati Biswas had deliberately and" malicious­
ly" committed suicide by drowning himself, so that a false 
charge of murder might he brought against 1\-1r. G. and his 
servants, althou~h the medicc.l evidence was to the effect that 
no water was found in the stom3ch of the deceased I Mr. S. 
further went on to suggest in this report that the two witness­
es referred to above !>hould be prosecuted for having given 
false evidence before him. These two persons were then 
prosecuteJ under orders of the District Magistrate, before Mr. 
T., Joint-:'I'fagistrate of Krishnagar, who convicted them of 
having: given false information, although the depositions 
were not produced before him, and although it was not 
clear what was the precise character of the proceeding in 
which tbey had deposed, and sentenced them to three 
months' rigorous imprisonment. The conviction waf; also 
wholly unsustainable on the e ... idence. These two persons 
then ilPpealed to the Sessions Judge of Nuddea, and on their 
appeai coming on for hearing, all public discussion of' the 
case'b'y their Counsel was avoided by the Government Plea­
der, who at die outset informed the Court, under instructiol1&. 
from the District Magistrate, that the conviction could not be:' 
sup~orted, in asmuch as the record of Mr. S.'s enquiry coJ11cll 
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not be produced, and that it contained the deposition.s of 
witne!;ses as well as Mr. S.'s sanction for the prosecution 
which had not been put in at the tria.l. On the acquittal of these 
two persons their Counsel moved the Judge to cali for the 
record of the enquiry by Mr. 5., and to set aside his order 
discharging the prisoners originally arrested on a charge of' 
oulpable homicide. The Sessions Judge was of opinion that 
the enquiry which Mr. S. had held, and which had terminat­
ed in the discharge of the prisoner, was by law a judicial 
prooeeding, and as he thought that there were prima facie 
grounds for supposing that there had been a failure of justice, 
he called for the record of the enquiry under the provisions 
of the Code of Criminal Procedure. The District Magistrate 
(Mr. S-s), however, being of opinion that the enquiry by his 
subordinate Mr. S. was non-judicial, declined to comply with 
the Judge's order calling for the report, on the ground that 
public interest would suffer by its production. The 
Judge was thereupon compelled to make a reference to the 
High Court on the subject, and that Court called for the 
proceedings of Mr. S. In the meantime, having regard to 
the public agitation on the subject, the Government of 
Bengal was induced to publish this extraordinary record 
onlitting certain portions of Mr. S.'5 report. Its publication, 
however, did not in the slightest degree allay the public 
excitement regarding the case, and the entire press condemn­
ed the proceedings of Mr. S. as having led to a scandalous 
failure of justice. An application was then made to the 
High Court to quash the finding of Mr. S., but that Court 
held that, although Mr. S.'s enquiry was, under the law, 
judicial, he was not bound to come to any finding when 
making an inquest, and that consequently his report was npt 
a judicial document. (See I. L. R., 3 Cal. 742), . 

The details of this case and its several episodes were 
severely commented upon by the press for many months in 
1878, and were such as to throw great discredit upon the 
administration of criminal justice in this country~ th. the 
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report submitted by Mr. S. embodying the result of hi$ itt>­
quiry, he actually stated that he haLl detained some of " the' 

• Par"ll.aph 65 of tbe R'lort, . factory servants" only to k~p up 
appearanct's, *" and he also admitted 

having committed, in the course of the enquiry, certain acU 
which wer: wholly llleg<II and unjustifiable. 

CASE NO 1.2 

The Munghyr Case--- 1879 

The facts j)f thi" G:::.e creakd mud] ~vI ! -;ation in Bengal 
10 lhe Y(';1f ri:l79. A di-,pute had l'xi"tl'd for some years 
rcg<lfdin ,~; Ih. __ PllS"t's~io n of a piece of land which a wealthy 

mohunt t lnmcd L'l('hmi IJ.jS claimed H~ p;lrt of his property, 
while the :\1ajholi lndigo COllCL'!'1l (of which Messrs. Crowdy 
and Holloway wCI'e l\ Lln;I1~'> !") cl ,!lllll'd as amwrtaining to 
their c"t.lk. Oil til.' :?2~Jd (If [\\) ·; "JlJh~·'-. I SiS. the l1lohunt's 
people' SO\I'C :! I :IC d," jHikd I. nd wit:l \\'lIC;I! and ('lil'(' lIil. There­
UPOil a St' q'Clnl of U~l' :,I.lj!lOii In'~ig·,) F,lctory prdcrred a 

Ch~11'/~(J Clgaillsl S<Jllll' of llll' nl,)1\'":rll\ ~l'rv;llltf> ,HIt! ryots of 

having. a~ m :' ml)~'r" 01 all UULl',vi'l.I a~~': lIlbly, forcibly 
plOllg!wd and sow,,, 1 the: Lind. Tbe case was tried by Mr. H., 
an Assistant Magistrate, exercisIng scccnd class powers, 
who discharged all the accused (\xcept 0ne Jitoo La!, whom 
he convicted of h:lving been a I1nmber of an unlawful assem­
bly and sentenced to pay a fine of Rs. 200, or in default of 
payment to three months' imprisonment. Against this con­
viction and sentence Jitoo Lal appealed to Mr. M., the District 
Miigistrate, the result of which appeal will be mentioned 
hereafter. In his judgment convicting Jitoo Lal, the Assis­
tant IHagistratc. Mr. H. remarked: --

"In8smuch 811 no oriminal force 5was used on this ocoasion (altho\1,\Jb. , 
ill"re was a ahow of c.riminal foroe. if nec~gB3ry). I cmnnot a.ct undereeoti~ 
534. Crimina.l Procedure Code (Act X:o~ 1872). and restore Mr, Crowd7 W' 

p08Se8~n ; 
• 

t .\IMli"t-TIu: head or az,!>ot of I 11l0D"!ery. 
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The 'Section referred to was the only provision of law 
underwhicn. if criminal force had been actually used, a 
Ma.gistrate bad any right -tel restore possession, and Mr. H. 
clearly saw that he had no power whatever under the cir­
('umstancel; of the case to put the factory in possession of the 
disputed land. Nevertheless, he proceeded to do, in his so­
called executive capacity, what was manifestly illegal and 
what he himself was unable to do in his judicial capacity. He 
issued a private order to the effect that Mr. Crowdy should be 
put in possession of the land. This order of Mr. H. bei;g wholly 
without jurisdiction, was resisted successfully by the mohunt's 
people, who dcclincd to give up possession of the land. Mr. 
M., the Di:.;trict Magistr<lte, on hearing of the re~istance on the 
part of the mohunt's people, himself proceeued to carry 
out this illegal order of his subordinate. He arrived at the 
factory on the 23rtl January, 1879, and while dining with 
Mr. Holloway, Manager of the factory, that evening, arranged 
with him to go on the following morning anu take forcihle 
possession of the disputed land, of which the mohunt had 
admittedly been in possession for two months. Next morning 
Mr. M. went to the spot ac{'ompanied by a number of c0!lsta­
bles, armed with muskets and bayont'ts, and Mr. Holloway 
::with some 40 ploughs, to plough down the wheat and dlcena 
which had been growing upon the land since the 22nd 
Novemher. On arrival the Magl:>tLlte found the mohunt's 
people in large numbers on the ground, some of whom were 
armed with sticks, and though they showed (according to the 
Sessions Judge, who afterwards tried the c.lse) " extreme desire 
110t to commit themselves and 10 abstain scrupulously from 
any illegal act," several of them were arrested by Mr. M. and 
taken prisoners. Immediately afterwards on the same day, 
Mr. M., without any complaint and without any evidence, 
issued a warrant for the arrest of Mohunt Lachmi Das him­
self, Who Ii "red many miles away from the sP.Jt, on charges 
under sections 154 and ISS of the Penal Code, and,'although 
offences under those sections are punishable with tine '''only, 



and arebaila~lef~MT. M. expressly dir~cte~ in fritin,g .tf\.a.t, 
the mohunt should not be released on bail. The mohun\ wa, 
accordingly a.rrested on the 25th Janllaf'Y, brouglittn,t, 
Monghyr as a prisoner, ett'd kept.'n the Monghyr, Jail, for 20 

days without having been onc6'>'brought 4efore a Magistrat~. 

Mr. M. persistently refusing his applications to be released 
on bail. On the I4th FebtU'ary, Mr. M. himself proceeded to 
prosecute the mohunt and all his men in the Court of Mr. S., 
the Joint-Magistrate, who was subordinate to Mr. M., and 
though .the admitted facts of the case t1iclosed no sort of 
offence against the mohunt or his men, Mr. S. had not th*· 
independence to discharge them, but committed them on 
various charges to take thi.'ir trial in the Court of Session, 
which Court ultimately held that neither the mohunt nor his 
men had been JO!:uilty of any offence whatsoever, and acquitted 
them all on the 7th April, after they (the mohunt's men) h~d 
been in custody for more than two months. It ought to be 
stated that Mr. M. had in the mea:1time caused the crops of 
these men on the disputed land to be destroyctl. As regards 
the action of Mr. H. who tried to cancel, in his executive 
capacity, his own judicial order, the Sessions Judge (Mr. 
Lowis) in his judgment, remarked :-

.. Mr, H. admits in his evidl'nce thai since January 3rd (the date of hit 
,.judicial order) he has taken no evidence as to possession; that he has paHed 
no sub~equent judicial order on the subject; and that hie directions to the 
Police to uphold the factory in disturbing the possessiQJl of the mohunt'l 
people were executive orders practically cancelling the judicial finding refuI­
ing to restore possession to the factory." 

Re,;arding the case. itself against the mohunt and his 
people, the Sessions Judge made the following observa. 
tiQns ~-

" The night before he (Mr. M.) arranged with Mr. Holloway. the 
uUstant of the fa,tory. to meet him nut morning and point out the laud. 
He went to the spot accordingly, when the factory were ready with lOme 40:, 
ploughs. to plough UJ,I the crops which had been crowinr there. as .h.~' 
cOlDputed. for two months previoutdy. Having.. got there, hjj ... 's, he . q':' 
plained to the people that they mu.t allow-the order of th. A_"'~ 
~~~ to be carried oo!. The crOWd, originally llbout 200, .incrtla,"", 



.. U"8lW" ~o ",uller 1,000, w .insisted that 'file land &~ould not be given uP. 
,Be theh4yB he al'reSfed lOme '14, persons, when, Feeing that the people 
""wid not go, and tha.i, Mr. HonOwaY~8 ploughs had been driven away 
towards the faetory, he proceeded to leave the ground. He then goes on to 
dee,e.ri17e the rescue of the prisoners, From the above it is quite clear that 
from first to last what the magist~ate was trying to do was to reMrOrQ 
possession to the factory. This, it is almost needless to point out, he ha,d no 
rig~t to do. PossEjBsion was with the mohunt's people..; no judicial enquiry 
'bad'been made under' Chapter XL, and no criminal authority has except 
under this chapter, any jurisdiction to interfere with actual possession of 
inI'nloveable property. 

'0 The prosecution may urge, why did not the parties app!oal to tne 
authorities? But, in the first place, the party in possession was being 
a.8~ailed, and had been assailed ever since J :lnuary 7th, by tile local' cI'1minal 
authorities acting executively, and it was difficult for them to know where 
to apply for help l' not only eo, but theirfailure to apply for the proteotkm 
·oith" authoritil"s, had such protection been available, would only deprive 
them of the plea of self-defence, and it would be unnecessary to consider 
tba't .or a.ny other plt'a in their defcnc9 until a case under section 141 has 
beau made out against them by the prosecution. No sllch case has beeQ, 
made out. The aSijembly had not for its common object the overawing 110 

public servant in the exercise of the lawful pOWEr of such a publIc servant. 
nor was the common object tho l'nforcing of a right, the only item of olaUS$ 
4 whic~ could in any way apply; the crowd, therefore, up to the' time the 
prisoners were rescued, were not an unlawful assembly. " 

The above narrative of facts is based, as indeed the' 
,judgment of the Sessions J lldge itself was based, 'llpon the 
d~'position of Mr. M, hiJl1!;'elf given in the Sessions Court. As 
regards his refusal. to release the mohunt, Mr. M. said in his 
deposition :-

" I direoted that no bail should be takon. I knew that the offences under 
sections 154 and 155 were bailable. From the date of his apprehension, 
January 25th, up to 13th February, he was not, so far as I know. bnl\lght 
up before any Magistrate, but his Mukhtear came to me and applied for 
bail, which was refused on the ground that there would be another riot.~ 

According to the finding of the Sessions Judge himself it 
was clear that if any person was guilty of rioting it was Mr. 
M. himself, but he probably thought he was justified in acting 
in b!s executive capacity in the way he did I 
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Jitoo"tat's Ap~1d 
,~ 'H 

On the 30th of January r879, a few days aftor Mr. M.b,a.d 
accompanied Mr. Holloway. a'Jld attempted to put him by 
force in possession of the land, Mr. M .• while out' on tdbt 30 
mires away from Monghyr, and without irving any notice to 
tbe appellant of either the time or pla~e of hearing., took up 
the appeal of Jitoo Lal, and not only dismissed it 'but 
enhanced the sentence originally passed by Mr. H" from a 
fine of Rs. ioo to six month's rigorous imprisonment! J~too 
Lal theruupon moved the High Court, anti that Court on the 
9th May I879. quashed Mr. 1\1.'s order, on the ground that the 
appeal had never been heard. Tho High Court proposed that 
tae appeal should be seat down to the then Magistrate of 
Monghyr, as Mr. M. had in the meantime taken furlougbt but 
Jitoo Lcd's Counsel stated that, although the origin'al 
conviction by l\Ir. H. was in his opinion unsustainable on the 
merits, yet his instructions were not to press for the hearing 
of the appeal, unless the High Court itself were inclined to 
bear it, and he aceordin~ly pressed that t}le appeal might be 
transferred to the High Court. The learned ]udge,s not 
having agreed to hear the ap~al thcl11!'>elves. it was with­
drawn gimply Lecause the <,ppellant had 110 confidence in 
the Court of the District Magistrate! The High Court c~­
eluded its judgment in these terms :-

• We W(lre prepared to Bend the appeal back to be heard by the pNNlent 
Magistrat.l:\ of Monghyr, but Mr. Ghoea (Cuunsel for the appellant) say a be 
does not wish that course to be taken. The original conviction will therefore 
stand. W", are bound to add that we have seen In this ca.se indications of 
much irregularity and serious indiRcretion on the part of the Magistrate. 
Having made this remarJr. we do not think it necessary now to eay anything 
futWler ... 

In commenting upon this case, the Englishman (16th May, 
1879), remarked:-

.. We feel bound to add, in t~ interests of public justice on which tIlQH 
than anything else the permlUlence ot our Government in India dppe. 
that the' Judges of the High Court have shirked their duty, and 1Ul_ the, 
veil if_ lalf-heuted and indeed mOlt gentle censure, ¥ove attempted. ~ . ' 



~fI'Ii ' .one of, the grOISest. perversions ,of the criminal law that has ,.' 
~~to olU'notice." 

This" gross perversion of the law" would scarcely have' 
been, possible if Magistrates in India did not combine execu­
tive with judicial functions. It should be stated that an 
attempt was actually made by the local authorities to pre~ 
an appea'i through the Local Government against the judg­
ment of the Sessions Judge acquitting the mohunt and his 
men, but the Legal Remembrancer declined to advise any 
such course in a letter which he addressed to the Commis-... 
sioner of Bhagulpur, which was published in the Statesmall of 
the 27th June, 1879, and which letter ended thus :-

"I do not attribute much blame to Mr, H.; his only fault appears to 
me to hS\'e be .. u ill striving to get rid of his own decision, and this sinks into 
inligniflcance when contrasted with some other orders that have been passed 
and carried out in the course of the proceedings . 

•. It is'not my province to distribute praise or blame among any of the 
officera conc8I'Lled, but I feel it my duty to point out to you that any attempt 
to make public these proceedings by appeal or otherwise must result in 
bringing disoredit, not only on the officE-ra concerned, but probably an the 
lIervioe to which they belong. The record is herewith returned." 

Commenting upon the wi\lJdrawal of the appeal of Jitoo 
Lal, the Statesman in a leading article (20th May 1879) made 
the following remarks :-

.. JUoo La! is unfortunately a repTesentative man. There is throughout 
the Mofunil a deep feeling of dissatisfaction with Ollr administration of 
justioe, and this ought to be known and acknowledged, for it is fatal to true 
loyalty. There can be no advantage in blinking ullJlleasant faots, in trying 
to delude ouraelvee with the belief that the people have confidence in our 
administration of justioe. and in making our countrymen at home believe 
tl$t thie is one of the great boons we have bestowed upon the people, for 
whioh they are truly thankful. The truth is not eo. The people have the 
ereateat confidenoe in our High Courts, and generally also. we think, in '6ur 
Selillioni Judges, but not in the justice administered by our Mofussil Ma.gis:­
tratIlB." 
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CAsE NO.1.S 
The Krishnagar Students' Case-ISS. 

This case illustrates in a very striking manner the evils 
resulting from the existipg combination of judicial and exe­
~ve functions, and shows likewise how the system may be 
made to work in the interior of Bengal. The facts of the 
case stated briefly are as follows :-At a B.;rwari jatra (a 
theatricM performance given by public subscription)' held at 
Krishna~ar on July 15th, tRR4. a large crowd had assembled 
and a number of student;, were sC'ated on benches constructed 
of bamboos. The managers of the jatra in order to make 
room for more visitors, suddenly cut down some of the 
benches on which the boys were seated; some of the hays, 
in consequence, fell down and the remainder began clapping 
their hands. The clapping continued for several minutes and 
the result was that the performance could not take place, and 
the audience were dismi"scd, the band playing the National 
Anthem. The District Superintendent of Police, Major R., 
who had somt' hand in org,lllisillf4 the jatra, Was very much 
annoyed at the perform:lI1ce not having takf'n place, and he .. 
directed his suhordinate police to .:Irrc!>t the boys who by 
'their clapping, were instrum~ntal in breaking up the jatr4. 
He also caused one orthe shopkeepers to become the fonnal 
complainant in the case, and a prosecution was accordingly 
instItuted against several of the boys, who had been arrested 
in their lodgings, on a v:lriety of charg~s. Major R. got the 
Magistrate of the District, ], ... lr. T., to make over the case to 
an Assistant Magistrate Mr. P. H. O. of the Bengal Civil 
Service, and prevented the case from being taken up in the 
ordinary course by any of the Bengali Magistrates in the 
town of Krishnagar. Twenty-five students were accordingly 
charged before the Assistant Magistrate on the 25th July; 
fifteen witnesses for the prosl:cution were examined in . chief, 
the cro¥-examination being reserved. All that these 'Wit .. ' 
nesses Noved was that these boys were among those Wilt.') 

, • ¥. .. 

,haa, by c1aptling their bands, prevented the jatra frqm tum, 
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pl~., On the 26th July, the trial having beell resumed. tne 
students were defended by Counsel from Calcutta, and the 
following extract from the report of the proceedings, publish­
ed in the' Statesman newspaper, will show what passed 
between the Magistrate and the Counsel on that occasion :-

The oaS6 was resumed on Saturda.y. 26th July, when Mr. M. Ghose. 
Counsel for the accl1sed. who was not present the day before, asked the 
Court's permission to make a statement. He said that never befor~, had 
any court been engaged in the trial of a more trumpery case. It was incon­
oeivable how anybody could have thought that what the accused .had done, 
amounted to an offence either imdpr tlJe Penal Code, or any other law 
prevailing in the Mofussil. He was ready to give the prosecution a chance 
of retiring from the case, [lnti recommended them tD drop it; b~lt if in spite 
of this opportunity. thoso who were rcspon~lh!(~ for this pro&ecutilJn, desired 
to vrucecd he wuuld be glarl to have tbe wholr affair3 thoroughly sifted. At 
the same tinw, Mr. G11oso witrned the othpr side that this course would lead 
to a grrat many unple,.~ant revelat](,ns. The learnerl C,>UIlsel thought it 
most undosirable that the tunc of thc Court .houlrl be further taken up witlh 
the investigation of tIllS frivolous matter. for clearly the Rrishnagar 
magiRtracy and police had little SE-l'JOUS work to engage them, if they could 
spare time to m vestig-ato such a paltry matter. 

The Ma~istratt'--l admit that. so far, the evidence has disclosed no 
offencE', But thCl prosE-cution have not finiBhed their caRe. They have two 
morewitncsses--one to provo misehief, and the other insult, and their evi­
dence, they say, is of a rather serious natlue. They do not say that all the 
boya were cunccrned in it. M03t probably 10 or 12 of them who have not 
,been identified will be dIscharged; but against one of them there is a very 
clisgusting insult alleged. We mUot finish the caso of the pro~ecution first. 
At present I consider there might be a case. The boys, as far as I can 
make out, diJ make some noise; but you Ddn of course put another light 
upon that Clrcumbt3nce by your cross-examination. 

Mr. Ohose-But what constit.utes the mischief with which they are 
oharged? It must bo shown that the boys intendod to damage some tangi­
ble proporty, whereby 1088 accrued to certain people. 

The 1':ll.gistrate--F'or instance, there was pecuniary loss to the member" 
of the Barwari. 

Mr. Gbose-Pecuniary loss in this case would not constitute mischief, 
." it would Lot in ll.ny way come within th~ definition of "mischief. ,,* It 

0< The del1uillOn of mischief accordmg to the Penal C,de 1S to be found in S 42S which 

~act.:-

Mischic/.-'Vhocver, with intent to cau, •• or knowing that he is likely to [jau.e, wro1li­
fllllOSll or damllle to the public or to any person, cause. tbe destruction of any prot>Jtty, M 

.. ..,. such ehanie in any pr<'l'erty or in the Oltvation there,,! as deatro)'l or diminishes ill value or 
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tDllat ~ pro~ed that it was the intention . of the boys to damage or ~ 
p1'Op&rty, in ooIl96q1l(Ulce oiwhich there was pecuniary IOSB to ita owner~. 

The Ma.gi8tra.~I think the BIlTwari Jab'a is a kind of property, if 
those getting it up expect profit from it. 

Mr. Ghose-It can be no property whatever; the performance Is got up 
by publi01lubscription. 

The Magistrate-The prosecution say that It belonged to Deepurt Roy, 
who got up the performance. as far as I can make out, in the hope of making 
a. profi~ 

Mr. Ghosc-A"Ruming that to be so, the offen~e which the boys Intended 
to commit ~~ ."Iapping their hanas. could not be considered as misohlef. 
TI,ke, for ext.mr1e. thl' 'l'ichl,ornl' ,Iemonstrations in Hyde-park. Oould those 
people who disturbed or interfuflJ with them be charged with having 
committed miseliief? The utm()~t tl}at con].\ btl allegod n.gainat the accused 
is that they had rut a stop to a puhlic performance. The doing 80 nlighi 
under cflrtaiu cirCUmsLItDCtlS have beon an olIenol'. if lhe Oalcutta Police 
Act applied. 

'fhe Magi"trato-WOllld not the causing of wrongful 1088 he an offence? 
If the b"ys c:J.usell wrong-fnl lotl~, th"y ought to be punished. 

Mr. GhoHe·-·C~rt:, mly Jlot. C"u~ing wron!{ful loss is not an offonoe 
un(ler the ['<'nat 00(h', excopt under ({Jri ain circumstances. Wrongful 108s 
may he in sCJlne (laSeR ground for a civil action. 

The Maglgtratc --The polIce allege 10"". lind thp1'oforo r must hear ali 
the evidence thoy offer. Thpy say they II:lVO two 1ll01'e wilnEIR8e~--One to 
prove pceuniary 10":', and the other tho unb wflll object of the MSI-mhly. 

Mr. OhoRe then said that if tIl<' pro~ecuti()n wt're detormined to go on, 
he WlLS quite prtJpar<ld tila1. there should be a thorIJugh sifting of the matter. 

Two more witnesses whom the Police wished to call 
being absent, the Counsel for the defence urged that the case 
should not be further postponed unless the remaining wit­
nesses could speak to any particular offence against anyone 
of the accused. 1;'he Magistrate decided that he would give 
the Police an opportunity to produce all their witnesses, 
and that in the meantime Mr. Ghosc might go on with the 
<-Toss-examination of th€' witnesses already called. Acco!d­
utility or affects it injuriously. commits "mischief." 

Expitmatilm I.-It i. n~t e11I!ential to the offence of mischief that the offender Ihould fftten~ 

to aaUJe loss or damage to the owner of the property injured or dcotroyed. It ill lUl\'icient 11 
he inte~d!I to cause, or knows that he Is likely to ".use. wrongful lou or dam aile to any pe'*'>ll 
·by injurina any property, whether it belong. to that person Ol' II0t. 

. Exf/"nall. 2.-Miscblef may be con,mitted hy an act ."~ectinll properly beloliliftJ to thI 
pencil wI", cOllnnits the act, or t(l that per.cn ~l1d "iiJerslulntl),. . 
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ing1y the witnesses were cross~8xamlned "and the t'ase was 
. . 

postponed to the 2nd August, on which date one af the' absent 
,witnesses Wl1S examined and cross-examined. 

At this stage Mr. Ghose asked the Magistrate whether he "thought that 
'there was any use in going on with the case. having regard to the opinion 
whioh the Magistrate had expressed on the previous occasion. • 

The Magistrate-It seems to me that the acccsed ought to be charged 
with being members of an unlawful aRsembly under clause 5 of Section 141 
of the Code. The 8imple question is. whether these boys used force or not? 

Mr. 'Ghos~-Upon that point there is no evidence whatever. On the 
contrary we have evidence that the jatra people broke up the performance 
of their own accord. The complainant began by saying" We will break UI) 

the performance if you go on likE' that." There was no compulsion of any 

sort used. 
Til!' M agiotrat,,-I think theJ'e was considerable compulsion. 
Mr. Gllose-How can that be when they thclllsdves put a Atop to the 

performance. hy thinking no douut that it would be more discreet to do so ? 
The Magistrate-The section explaining crimma! force says (read S. 

3~O P. C.)* If the clapping drove tho people away, then 1 (JonsidE'T the accu­
sed were guilty of criminal intimidation. 

Mr. Ghose-Bnt where is tho crirnmal foree'! There is no evidence that 
any person was touched. There wa" no attempt on the part of any of the 
witnesses to suggest anyLhing of Ow kind. On the contrary. the Inspector 
that morning had no reaROI) to think that any offence had been committed. 

At this stage, Major R. came in. tvok his s~at on the bench by the side 
of the Magi,}tr3,te, and began "ppakillg tv him III an iruudlb!e tone. 

The Magistrate-The l'(llie(' wellt to ask the witness this question 
.• Why (hd yon go and h,tthe "I" 

Mr. GhoHc--I object, to tilL' (FH'"tiun. 'Vhat he )]('ard and why he bathed 
would be no evidencl'. 

Mr. Gll08e,-1 objuct. to a de."blo prosecutor. Is Major R. going to 

prosecute? 
Major R.-If you like I will stand as prosecutor. Nobin Dey has been 

put forward as the formal complainant accordmg t.o usual practice, but I 
eertlLinly initiated the pl'oceeding>l in consequenC<1 of what I am about to 
say. ,AJatra was held with mil pf"rmis~ion and UlHlcr my authority. and it 
Wll.1I thnefore legally held. That jutl'a was interrupted, and I wish to 
know who did 80? (in a loud tone) . 

.. S. 350 Penal C~)de enacts :-Crtm;1l1l1 jCI';:f.-\Vhoever intentiunally uses force to any 
penon, without that person's consent, in ('rdcr to the cl"mmitting of ::my offence, or intend~ 
long by the \lse of "\lch fMC< to c:mso, or knowing it to be likely that by tbe useef such f~ 
11<: will cause injury. fea~" or anncy~nre to the person to whom the force is ~. is'llaid to 

U.it <;rim.i.nal (,iTC-e tv lh:lt IJt~~r-r. 



·)li. Gllo~11i!tf miy be ."Very natural «;.urioeity on yo Ill' Pat"':'~01J 
YOII might .t-ratifY by mll.king'k private inquiry. But at present w. De iii 
the midst of a ~·ri.i1inal trial, Major R 

The Magistrate' t.:> Major R )-E\'cn if this evidence were put forward. 
it would co~ to notl.ing. E\'en if what these two m/m sllid to him were 
a,tmitted in evid~llce. it would have no effect. It would prove nothing . 

..Major R.-The witn('sli means to say that he was not aware of the fllct 
hilll~plf, but that ;thers told him that (l. cert'lin thing had occurreu, in (:011-

S(\(jUt'n"e of wl~ich he \V l'n i. IHHlIP to bathe. 
Thtl MagiHtrtlte -Mew heuI say would pro\'/' nothing except that he had 

a reubon for going t u bathe. 

Major.:s . -What w mllIullI,·"ti, n (hd tll!'Y make to him? ,lfV witnelS8&1 
. hRve heen ask\'d what I stliu t" the"I, auri wilY elullIot I tlsk them what they 
h!jard from other,,? 

T:le M.ltgi"tr.ile--That W:tb [u,ked fnr a tli!f~rellt purpo~() undor erolls· 
tlxaminatioll. T1tat is not, >tdrnissihle nndl'r tho E"Hlence Act. Ht, received 
a cOO1munic ... tion-th;,t i, ;~lI we G:tn Ill'Hr. in "Ul1"l"qncllco of whillh ho did 
what he otherwise w,,,,hlnot hu\'e c1,nlt'. We oannot go farther than that. 
If you timi out thetic' two men. you may a;k thcm what it wa~ th~·y told thl!l 
witlle.,s. 

J\:[aj ' lf It-In that ca~o I shall .1sk tho Court to ~lV" me 1\ postpnnl'ment. 
Mr. Gl106C-If ~Il(',(' tw.) 111('11 nrc not myl.hH, the police ought to have 

f,mnd out Ion", a~o who thl'Y ar\'. l shall object very strongly to a .po .. tponc· 
Ill p.nt Oll thd.t ground. If oll ch ft HtatC!1J~llt was really made to bim, he 
evid('ntly attached very little irllporl<tn c(' t o it at the timo. 

The Magistra1.,,--Their caso is that it was communicated to the Sub· 
Inspcctor that evening. 

Mr. Ghose-Then why did m·t he make inquirieR as to who the men 
w('ro? The witlle"B was sorving- (Ill Lhe jury tlw t wMk. and tllf' pulice had a 
whole wl'ek to prepa'!'e an<l s,md up thrir case. But they did not do so, anI! 
now ask for a p08tponemenl. 

Major R -There was a v\'ry g00d rca~Oll why the Suu-In~pectoc could 
not take d0wn the witness'statement at tho time. Ashutosh W3S aervillg 
on a jury. and we could not withdraw him from a Court of Justice. 

The Magistrate-Tho explanation of tho police seems to me to be 
satisfactory so far as it goes. The police say" Our witness is going to fay 
110 and 80, .. but when he comes here he makes another statement. 

Mr. Obose-There is nothing to show that be has made a . different 
8tatement. The police never took down his statement to them . . 

Major R-Beoause we could not get him. 

Mr. Ghose-Did the polioe at any time reduce his etatement to writipfa 
~ajo' R-We are not bound to de 80. .' 
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'f.be ,Magistrate-Tlie police send this rn8'n up to make a certain .Ate­
meni, and they had every reAlon for thinking he would make it. 

Ur. Ohose-What reason? Is there nnythip.g to show that he 'had 
made a different statement to the Sub-Inspector? I have no objection to 
bis going into the box, and eXamining him again on that point, although 
that would be a most objectionable proceeding. Assuming that such a. 
communication was made to the witness by these two men, what is there 
in the evidence to exclude the hypothesis that somebody had seen something 
or discovered something which he imagined was defilement and reported it 
to this man? What is there to show that the defilement was caused 
intentionally, or that the substance was not water. It is well known that 
at the mere mention of the cause of defilE'ment, a Brahmin will 'n"nnediately 
go and bathe himself' And in a large concourse like that at the jatra. 
where there woro 5,000 people pret;ent, if one of their number had seen any­
thing like that, ev('ry Brahmin among the,m would have to go and bathe. 
Some one in the crowd might have been suud('nly t" ken ill. 

The Magistrate-But you will have to prove tlwt. 
Mr. o hose-No : the pl'o[leeution must prove the contrary. The mere 

fact that somebody saw something which ho imagin\·d was pollution would 
not prove that it was intentional. T)wl'e mm,t he some evidence to show 
that it was intentional. 'I'hat is a proposition admitting of no doubt. Is it 
pretended by the prosecution that the boys had eonsjlired with a (lommon 
object, and that object was to commit this act of defilement? 

The Magistrate-The po1ief) say tlJat it was done with the common 
object of breaking up the assembly. 

Mr. GhOBO-Not one of the witnesses who have been examined on this 
point has yet said so. 

Major R.-That is bocau8C' you have not permitted that question to be 
put. 

Mr. Ghose-Major R.. I am at present addressing the Court. 
The Magistrate-Their intention to put a stop to the jatm is perfeotly 

olear, and in pursuit of that objcet, this act of pollution was committed by 
one of tueil' number, and by the law everyone of them must he held to be 
responsihle. I am rather inelined to think that it might come under the 
head of orim'!)lnl force. There is no doubt that tho boys did something fb~t 

". was wrong. .At the &t1110 time. ~e question is whether what they did was 
unlawful or not. 

ltl', Ohose-Leaving a~de the legal aspect of the case, suppose anum· 
ber of Englisli boys bad IDe en seated in a theatre. and the managerB ousted 
~em &om ,t~. seats, I think you will agree with me that they would be 
unworthy at th~ing English boys if t.h,ly tamely submitted to being so treated. 
'fI anything like this had oocurred in England, no Police Magist;a.te would 
ba,ts thought of entertaining the cha.rgo. G 
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'l'heMagjstrate-.As a matter of f80t, I remomber a aimilllt ca6 in 
England, in which several undergraduates were taken befo~ the \V1~. 
chancellor and fined. 

Mr. Ghoee-That was merely university discipline. Here tho oase 18 
different. On the two previous daye, there was no disturb~noe whatever' 

. and even on the day in question the performanoe was goillg. peaceably untii 
the bancbae were cut down. It was then that tbt'y eommt'neoo to cJap. 

Major R.-Mr. Ghose means to say that no boy i8 amenable to the 
crimlnallaw-that is, young men and boys maydo anything with impul)ityl 

Mr. Ghose- Pardon me, that is Dot so. and I would not lay down any 
such unte~JI'~le prop()~ition of Is w. The point is whether there is any orimi. 
nal offence disclosNI. 

The Magistrate-Well, what. is ,. force"? 

Mr. GhosC'-Can it be !laid that because ther" W<l8 a hissing and olapping, 
there was criminal forc('? 

The Magi8trate-ThE're can bfl no doubt that the intention of the bOYI:I 
by hiRsing and making a noise was to break up th e jatra. 

Mr. Ghose-No. thoir intl'ntion waH to Clxpr/)IlB their dilmpprobation at 

the conduct of the bartl'ar,: peopl(·. 
The Magist.rate- On the contr:lfY. the complainllnt says" I said I wil 

break up the jatra if you do not. Rtop clapping ... 
Mr. Ghose-But where is the evidence that they intended to USB foree, 

or made a show of forcf) 'I 

The Magistrate-The que&tioll i~ . what was the IdIeot of the clapping on 
the minds of the people? 

Mr. Ghose-That it WaF! a. ~ood joke-just as. wh"n in a London 
theatre a play is not approved on the first nighi of its production, people in 
the gallery hiss. but the audil'IlC(' never take that demonstration 808 being 
hostile to thomsolves. 

The Magistra te-It is OUEI thing to exprOS8 disapproba tion and another : 
for the pit to have a free fihht. In this case there might have been a 
fight. only one party thought it wise to leave. Was not this clapping 
likely to have produced a. fight if tbe people had chosen to stay' We 
are not bound to consider the lucky circumstance that these boys had a 
quiet set of people to dea.l with, who ga .... e way to them. SUPPOM "tbef 
had tried to interfere with a Mussulman procession? Thai Uancyirould 
have been a serious business. 

Mr. Ohose-I{ their intention was to cause a row, then it would 'have 
btl\n a different thing, and in the case of a MUlsulman · prooeulon ~ 
would have been charged with outr&ging., the religiOu" feelfhBa It the., 
procllS8iow.ts. In the whole courae of my experience: I 'laava ..,~ . 
Ilot.lliig I~ thi8 hunting about ort the,.art of the police for eeQ~ : 
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',~r which to charge tJie accufJed, and this they have be&~ .~1la" 'fe( 
B wbollt fOTtnight. , . 

The Magistrate-Of course the charge of mischief canno~ stand e.fter 

.J>&8pUn Roy's evidence, but we are now considering whether tho oonduot . 
<If tho accuse'd did not amount to ('riminal intimidation. It is .the usual 
thing that has pappened in the preparation of this case-w~at is e,:,e17-
hody's business, Ie llobody's bu~illes8. and no one seems to have taken 

much trouble about it. 
Mr. Ghose~Don't you think that bl'forc a case is instituted, those -.vho 

are responsible should firRt be certain of their ground? Can they be 
allowed in the course of the trial to be perpetually shifting it, and all 
because Major R.'s feelings aTe outraged by the fact that ;;-Jatra which 

had his authority had been put a stop to! 
Major R.-I beg to reply to that remark. 
Mr. Ghose-Excuse me. Sir. I am addre!!sing the Court now. 

Major H.-Mr. Gho~b ha~ aHserted that I have been hunting about for , 

sections and that sort of thing, in order to bring something against thea&' . 
boys, because they interfered with ujatl'a which hall my permission. Now, 
there was a good deal of intJupnc.e brought to bear on me not to prosecute, 
ILnd I went so far as to agrpe not to do ~o; but thl're wen Home legal 
difficulties in the wa,V. and the e[t'c had eventu ally to go before the C'Jurt, 
I never anticipated that c. matter which Mr. Ghoee himself calls trivial 
should call for the serviceR of ~o I"minent a mpmber of the Calcutta bar 
as himself ano another Calcutt,a barrister. The probability i", that had 
there not betln 80 much oPPof;ition to the case, thero would not have been 
80 much perseverance on our part to ascertain and maintain the authLrity 

of the law. 
The Magir,trate-In the ilIustration~ upprfl(l\' d to section 34~ thew are 

lome remarkable instances of criminal force--as for instance A. E. an-l 17.* 

• (oJ. Z is foit ling in a moorerl bpat (I n a rt\'cr, A unfa C\ tc ns t'iC mC'lorlllgs, and thus i.nten­

tionally causes the boat to drift down the stl-ean1 Here A intellti onally C.lU~es mt't.("'n to 
Z. and' be d(1ea this bv d;c;posiJ"i 5.ubstanl.'e~ 111 sllch a manner that the motion j~ produced 
..nthout any ol1ler act on any pelson'~ part, A has therefore intentionally used force to 
Z; and if he has done 10 without Z'g consent, in order to the comll\ltHng Llf any (.ffence. 
or itlt~ndina " r knowing it to be likely that tillS use of force will cause injury. fea·. or 
~"".ooe *0 Z. A h.1 used criminal furce to Z. 

(t'1 A t~s a stone, Intending or knowing it to be hkely that the stone will be thus 
brOlllht , into COnILc1;, .... itb Z. or with Z's d othes. or witli something carried by Z, or that it 
_III Ilrift water, and dash up the ... ·ater against, Z's cl<,thes. or something carried by Z . Here, 

,tf ,".he thrOW~1I of the slone produce the effecl of causinll any substance 10 come Into contact 
wlth;l. ot Z'. cloth ... A hal used force 10 Z; and If he did 10 without Z's coruent, InteDdinc 
bereby.to injure, frighten, or annoy Z, be has used criminal force to Z. 

',). Z la ·uathinl. A P<lUn into the bath wat~r which he knows to be boilinll. Here A 
,,~ntionaUY. by hiB own bodily power, causes such lJlution in the boiling ""lor "J lJrinp 
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'llii"'_ose-ThOse illuatra.tions ba'fe a oertidn element whioh is ab'lIt'nt 
in the' ~~nt case. nere there wall nothing tangible. It \Va. aU_ 
matter of th, mind; no qiatter was lIet in motion-the whole thing waiF 
MntimentaI. 

The'liIllgistrate-Thcn as regards section 351, which says (readiij.· It 
strikes me that clapping is such a sign of war. 

Mr. Ghose-If you clap your hands at n dog, I can Undl'rRtand that 
the intention is a b ... llicoae one, but I hear now. for the first time, that 
the clapping of llandll is a "sign of W!IT." From an EngliRb point of view, 
it would be regarded as a mere eXl'rp~~ion of •• pprobation,-or disappro­
bation when the clapping wa& ironical. 

,,~. 

The M.agitit.rat'l--The J,uinL is whether it waH likely to have oaused 
a breach of the peace. 

Mr. Ghose- Certainly not,'- an:1 whitt is mort' It. did not. 
The M/lgi~trate-Yos. lJee,W8t' Lhe b, 'ys h,ld to tI,'U\ with a law· abiding 

people. 
Mr. Ghose-·Does your \\""rollip illul;;in~ lh.tt thh {'laJlpin~ was not 

'taken up by the erowd? Tbe fad )s t.hat wllt'n tll" boys clap)lPlI. 6vHybolly 
followed suit. 

The Mag-i~tmte- But the c.lapl'ill~ h:ill Lhe eff"et of J,lrpu.king up the 
jrltra, and I harelly think tlLtt til., h''''won Pl'opl" \\(lllld voluntarily do 
anything to hurt t.!\[·m,;('l\"('~. It l' not u"llfil for a m,m to hurt himself 

intc'nthll ally. 
Mr. Ghl)se-BlIt th"f" W(le J\d hurt lH're, No (ln~ Hay~ thnt anybody 

was either hurt or annoyed. Till' pcople rIle·rely went away dl,~lipp()intod. r 
had your opmion tlw OthH day, tildt 110 ofl'poc(, hall b"('n diRciosed; no­

evidence IWl> "inc~ been gi"en to I~:ld you to dlallg'C that opinion. What 
is the case a.ga.in~t the boy~'/ In the whole Cl'ur~c of my o)(peri~nlJe I have 
never como across a more ab~urll c·t~P. If M:tj')r R. iH I'f'~p:J!1~ible for thE!' 
prosecution, I should like h) (;xamine hlill. He has himself t.old ue that h& 
is the prosel,utor. 

The Magistrate--It strikeR me th'Lt there waq 11 .h"w of crimi~a'J' torOi' 
within thE' meanin~ of the Act. 

Mr. Gh03C-It ",ill shorten llllltt~1'!I i' the Gourt \l'iIl allow fDIl tdi 
examine Mujor R. 

that wa.ter into contact with Z. or wirh (ItLer water ~r r;:luatcn tLat ~uC'h cOJ"tjrt ml1~ affect 
Z's eense of feeling. A hab thereiflfe intelltlOnr.lly lc."ed force lo Z; llr,tr If h:e has~ done ttdll 
witlu,ut ZIt. ccnscnt, inter,dmg (,r knnv l1_g it te, be I~~c:y that he may tLcTelrY ~U'Se~4njtttY,. 
feaT, tJr anno)ance to Z, A has W'jt.:d criminal ((;rce. i,... 'oj' 

• A.M.It.-WllOever makes any geolur. or ""y preparation. intendlng or kltowiltl .It to 
be Iike)y that oucb gesture or preparatIOn will call1ie allY penon ilfnent to apprehend' tkat he 
who make. that gesture or preraration is ~bout to Il')e crimina) force t" Ihar \)onQII •. ~ 
~id 1.C(Jmn~t 3U al'.l,;\Ult. 



The Magistrate...:..Whatever Major R. may say will have no oI4lot,-'oiF 
what other people may have to sa1. You will have to show" first thai' 
theJ::e was no force or annoyance. 

Mr. Ghoee-There is no evidence on record that there was any force 
or'annoyance .. There was only disappointment. 

'the Magistrate-My record and the report in the Statesman, both 
have the word "annoy,mce" frequently in your cross-examination. 

ilIr. Ghose-I have been singularly unfortunate if I have made out 
a. case against myself, when the prosecution hlld failed to do so. I feel 
confident that my crosB-examination did not disclose a case a.gainst 
the accused after the examination-in-chief had not done so. The word 
.. annoyance" does not seem to occur in the l'~port in the Sitnesman. (A 
copy of the Statesman was here handed up to the Court). 

The Magistrate-Of course at that time I knew nothing about the 
case and could not therefore put the witne~ses all the fjuestions I should 
have done, so that the flxamln .• tion-in-vI1ief was rather woak. 

MI'. Gbose-About thifl f()elill~~ of diH:Jppointment, a ma.n might be, dis­

allPointed a.t n l'erformt\nce being put off, hut he could not make a legal 
griovance of tha t. 

The Mugistrate"-Tt Ftrikes mE' that when p3o;:Jle are disappointed they 
are generally annoyed. We may presume tlwt when people have gone to 
hear a performancp which is int(>rrupted, they lLwe gono away unhappy. 

Mr. Ohoae-If there had ht'l'1l (my fOrv8 u'3ed to produco th"t result, 
that force wonld havE' h<,pn crimilul. I do f1')t pr JPose to cr()8s-cxamine all 
the witllesRNI. I am prepartld tn t;1k~ the l"ltik, because I consider that no 
offence haA bt'en di~doscd. Major H. i~ practically t;Hl prosecutor, and 
that b{1ing BO, I am cntitl"d to eX~t;nine him as til the ori:~;n of the prosecu­
tion. I wish to show tlnt this pr0~'HmtlOn is n.)t a /)(Iola fine one. That ie 
my dpfence. The prosecution is !ll,>rdy trymg Lo jUotify Major R.'s illegal 

proceedings. ASBumill; that all the witns588s hav"" Bp·)ken the truth, still 
the pr{)secutinn would not be bon,) jid '. SUJlPodillg I go'tu the dak bunga­
low and ,huvo brl'akfast therl', 11111 I allll'nablA to charge of criminal trespass? 

The Magifltn\te- It would he for th" COllrt to con~ider wht'ther that 

"lis. criminal. trespass. ,But that is different. In this case, I hold that 
~ the boys did Bomething wrong. 

Mr. Gbose-Considering how thl' boys were treated by the bflrwflri 

lleople, I simply admire their lllodt'mtion. If an attempt was m~de to) 
oust them from the benches, I say that no colloction of European boys 
'Wo~ld have behaved as mildly liS th.,¥ ,did. 

The Marristrate-Thea a collodion of European boys should haTe 
been punished. 

Mr. Ghose-But not undf'r these cir<lUlUstances, no other coturt would 
(lutel·tain ~uch Q, c,burg,>. 
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1IheJill~ate-AnY (lOUl't w~ld be juailiitd. in doing 10. 

Kr. Glloll6-8uppoae a number of .ud61nts wtlre at a publio m •• _. 
"ihd' ita organisers told them, "You must go away," but instead of goin« 
away they oJapped their hands; in doing this ,would they be guilty of 
any offence? 

The Kagistrate-That is a ciifferent thing. In this CaBe they We.l;O'uot 
"told to go away, but merely to make room. " 

Mr. Ghos8-The boys were seated; their benohes were out down,1lnd 
they were told to go away. 

The Magistrate-Have you proved that as the boys were seaad some­
body cut the benches and the boys fell to the ground? 

Mr. Gh~Yes, that is in evidence already. 
The Magi!ltrat~-The barwari people merely say, "We asked them to 

get up and they objeoted." You have go':; to show that the boys had some 
provocation to justify their oonduct. Take your own case of a theatre; 
the audience do not leave in a frigilt when there is 11 clapping of hands, 

J4.r. Ghose-But it is not shown that these people left in a fright. 
The Magistrate-Some sort of apprehension appears to have been 

shared by tho people who were there, as tiley thought it was much wiser 
for them to leave. 

Mr. Ghose-But their thinking so will not suffice. 
The Magistrate-Certain boys clapped their hands, whereupon the 

audience lilft. If the audience thought it a good joke, they would have' 
stopped; but they left because they were disappointed or angry. I consider 
that those who were on the spot were the best judges of their own feelings, 
<lnd if in consequence of those feelings they left, I am justified in holding 
that that clapping was criminal intimidation. 

Mr. Ghose-It cannot be oriminal intimidation. 
The Magistrate-I mean a show of criminal force. 
Mr. Ghose-Do I understand the Court to mean that clapping is a 

,show of criminal force? 
The Magistrate-Yes, under eertain circumstances. Supposing tbe 

boys went out on the maidan and clapped their hands, that wouW be no 
offence, but that they did so at the jatra and drove the paoIlla away l .. ~ 
different thing. The effect of this clapping amounted to a s~ow of orim~l 
fprce. It is fair to argue from the effect it had on the people pJ'eseai, that 
the olapping was a show of oriminal force. 

Mr. Ghose-Cerlainly not; because Major R. has .. penoil in hls hand 
whieh he is npw brandishing would 1 Qe justmed in ooncluding that he ,*,. 
80Q to strike me with it? The effeot it may have on my mmd is a 0011 • 
• ideration Absolutely irrelevant to the point, 

The Magistrate-It will save time, I fui.nk, if you go on wita ,~ 
C!'OheexaJination. 



lbjor n.-The' boys should be charged under section 2&8 'as ha~ 
eOll1tni.tted a p\lblic nuisance. 

Mr. Ghose-Ought not that to satisfy you, sir, that the proseoution are' 
~ating about.the bush tc get hold of something? They are not 8Ul'eeVen 

no ... what the offence is. , " 
r !he Magistrate-It strikes me that the prosecution are treating this as 

a trivial case . 
.. Mr. Ghose-I don't doubt the whole Fenal Code is open to them, but 

what we .. want to know is the charge upon which WII are going to be tried. 
I want to cross-examinE! Major R. firltt in order w show that thi. prosecu­
tion is not a bona fide one. 

The Magistrate-He knowlilnothing about the case. 
Mr. Ghose-~He has himself told us that he knows a good deal about it, 

and that Nobin is merely a formal complainant. If the oourt does not 
examine Major R. now, it will have to do so later on. 

Tho M<igiHtrate-The ftogular ordElr iH that he should be examined last. 
You have first to break down the case to a certain extent. You have not 
yet shown me that tile prosecution is not bonll.fide. 

Mr. Ghose-Well, then I object to Major R. being here, because he has 
been summoned. and I have to examine him. 

Major R. thereupon left the Court. 

The remaining witnesses were then cross-examined by 
the Counsel for the defence and at the conclusion of the cross­
examination the following conversation took place between 
the Cout\>.el and the M:\gistrate. It win be Seen from the 
remarks made by the Magistrate trying the case that he was 
entirely in the hands of his official superior, the District 
Magistrate, whose opinion he was anxious to obtain in the 
matter :-

Mr. Ghose-I have cross-examined the witnesses at SOlUe length, and 
eYen assulUing that they have told the truth, I submit there is no case. 

The V-agistrate-The broad facts remain the same. It seems olear to 
me that the conduct of the boys amounts to a show of criminal foroe. On 
aome of the minor points the witnesses have contradicted themsek>es, but ' 
the faot remains that the ju.tra was broken up. Tbe only question is ' 
w'Q.ether it does not amount to an offence, but I will make a referenoe to ~e 
Magistra~e about it. . . 

Mr. Gbose-Have you any power to do so? Under what se!!tioD do you. 
propose to make the reference. 

The Magistrate-It is the practice in the Mo/usail. 
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~ 14r. GnGle-That may be so, but I will oonsen~ to nothinl'"llfoh it \lot 

watr&nW by law. .. ' 
The Magistrate-I am satislled fuM what the aocused-dIll alJ!.GtIl\. tG 

eriminal force. 
Mr. Ghose-But where was the, sltow of force? Where 1l.re many nlee., 

quesiiOIl8 of law mvolved in the case. Even ifit weN II criminlll otf.IlOI 
to break u~ the jatra, there 40uld be a grtlat many other'ditlicu1iies to get 
over. It would have to be proved that the assembly was an unlawful one, 
and that the accused had 'nlet with II common objeot. 'fhe decisions Jl,pon 
that point ar!;! very fine, and the High Court has laid down that even 
when a ipUty go t.o di!lpossess a man of property and one of their number 
suddenly firec ~ gun, under section H9. Penal Code, it cannot be said that 
all the assybly are guilty of the act, 

Tile Magistrate-The evidence g008 to show that all the boys clapped, 
and thllt they accompanied tIlls clapping with cries, which may be taken 
to mean that they intendl:'d to stop the jatra. There are two more wituess­
es whom the pohce wa.nt to lind out. 

Mr. I}hose-In thIs way the police might go 011 prolonging the case 
indefinitely on the chance of something turning up. What!H to prevent 
them getting any two lllOIl to sw.,ar to wltat probably nevllr took place? 
Ou the last occasion tne police distinetiy said that thllY had no more wit­
nesses to call except Ashutosh Moohrj.'e, and the Court said the same. 

The Magistrate-Tho lJolice thon did not know cf these two men. 
Mr. Ghose-Then I understand the c.J.se has takeu another aspeot l' 

First the object of the assembly waH to cOlllmit mis<.:hiefj then, it was 
insuH, and thirdly, tlMt it was criminal furee; and a fourth aspect wall 
suggested to-day by Major R, VU., that it W..lS Il "nuisance." Ida not 
know that you have any power to make a rcferenoe to the Magistrate. 

The .Magistrate-I can make It privately. I can ask for iustructions 
on a point of law. 

Mr. 'Ghose-Nothing can be done privately in a criminal trial. Good 
deal of that is doue in the Mofussil, but I shall be no party to such a 
reference. 

The Magistrate-I won't make the reference as you object and relying , 
upon my own opinion, I hold that the facts amount to criminal force. I do 
not see why you are talking in this way when I aID dOing my best to help 
you. 

Mr. GhO&e-I am. naturally much surprised to hear you say now ~~ 
JPll oonsider the accused oommitted an offence, after giving your opiniol1 , 
the othez:,day that the evidence had disclosed no offence. However, If yOu ' 
have the' lIower to do so, I have no objection to your making a referenoe ~p,' 
the Magiruate. 

1\te !lagisCrate-The ease is now going on under the l)~ cla~ of, 
teCtion 141 of the Penal Code. 
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'kr.~Gh01le-Buinot against those who were DeY'.r identified. 
At thil stage 11 01 the accused "ere aoquitted by the Magi.trate under, 

_tioa 2(5 of the Oriminal Proeedure Code. . 
Mr. Ghose-Will y~u frame a oharge underseotion 141? 
The Magistrate-I do not know if it is neoessary ; it should be suffioient 

tha.t ,I hava.told you under what section the aooused are charged. I thought 
from the first that that section applied, and although I changed my mind, 
I had not taken it into consideration in connection with the a.otion of the 
people whose minds were affected by the olapping.~ , 

Mr. Ghese-Your assurance ought to be enough; but if you think there 
is auy chanoe of the section being ohanged, it is right that I should know 
now. 

The Magistrate-As far as I can see, you oannot be tried under any 
other section. 

Mr. Ghose-In my humble opinion the case does not come under the 
Penal COdA lit all. Bllt YclU have a perfeot right to m<l.ke a referenoe, if you 
think you have the power. The only reference the Code allows is one to the 
High Court. WLll you ask the Magistrate to refe~ the matter to the High 
Court? I shall gladly submit to such a reference. 

The Magistrate-Only the Magistrate of the District ITlay do that. 
Personally, I have no doubt whatever upon the point, but as you seemed to 
think the case could not come under the Code, I thought it would be better to 
have'two opinions. 

Mr. Ghose-With every respect for your opinion, this is not a caHe 
which can come under the 5th clause of section 141 at all. 

The Magistrate-I think it does. 
Mr. Ohose-Then we must go on with the case. Have the prosecution 

closed their case or not? I want to know this before I begin my case. If 
not, will they undertake to dose their case at the next hearing? 

The Magistrate-I think I may say yes, subject to those two men 
tUrning IIp. 

Mr. Gbose-But those two witnesses have no possible bearing on the 
case under the 5th clause. Their evidence won't be relevant on that 
charge. 

The Magistrate-I had forgotten all about them. It will be hard for me 
to SIlY if the proseoution have closed their case or not, because I do 
not know. 

'Mr. Obose-Then till they have, I ought not to be oalled upon to maq 
my defence. There ought to be 80me evidenoe that these two m~ will be" 
forthoomlng, Who {lore they? Their names are not even knO"lnl. They 
may be entirely mythical. 

The Magistrate (after consuning the police)-Besides these tw8 there. 



will be lIO other wiinesaell for the pros"",u.tion. The proseou'ion hav.ploted' 
their case subjeot only to thou wimeeeh WmiDg up, 

Mr, Gllose-Then my defence will be sim51y "Not Guilty," I did ~te_ 
at one time to advise my clltnts to make full statements, but afte' what 
has transpired in Court to-day, I have ohanged my mind. bur defence i, 
liimply "Not Guilty." 

The case was then adjourned to the r5th August on 
which da1!e Major R. himself was cross-exa.mined by Mr. 
Ghose with the leave of the Court. His evidence throws 
such ligly UP<Y.'l the, working of the present system that it 
is desiraL~~ to give copious extracts therefrom. The more 
important passages are printed in italics :-

I consider myself the de facto prosecutor ill this oase. I reoelved 
oertain information regardins- the jatra on the 13th July last, from It batch 
of boys. It was Hot in consequence of that tha.t I went to thA barwari : a 
large p09.<Je of policemen came to me after the boy .. had left, and in oonse­
quence of whftt they told me, I at onco began proceodings. On going to the 
spot I did not direct the Sub-Irlspector to get a complainant, and to inetitute 
a case against the b<,ys. 

Q.-Is it true that yuu told the Sub-Irlspeotor, .. Institute a case, take 
the ijahar ( statement) of a complainant, and investigate 1" 

A.-I have no recollection of having given him directions in these te1'll1l, 
but what I did say was to get a complainant in the uflual way. As a m.atter 
of fact, there was no complainant on Tllcord at the time. 

Q.-Did you tell him to get somebody to become a complainant, and then 
to invostigate the case? 

A.-No, not in the way you put it. I merely told him to enquire. i 
gave him no detailed instructions. I did notaay it in so many words. I fear 
that in the last month, so many things ha.ve happened that my memory wlll 
not serve me sufficiently Will! to give you the exact words I used to tlle SI1br:' 
Inapeotor. The purpurt of my instructions was that he should investigate 
the case, and send up everybody that was found to have been ooneerned in 
breaking up the jatra. I gave that order on the 13th July at about 90'olock: 
in the morning. 

Q.-Did you then consider what particular offence the boys had 
committed? 

A.-Yes, that they had been guilty of being members of an unlawful 
assembly. I considered that the object of that assembly was to break: up that 
jatra.That was alHhat stl'llOk me ali the time: the fact lhat a jatra ~ 
been brden up, wHich had no business to be brofin ,." was enough for .Di8. 
To the b¥t of my belief, I did authorize the baldiIII' of the Jatra. lio4t' 
oertlinlY I was annoyed. on loamlDg that a .iatra which ba<lmy, ofDcrial 



r.l.l!\o~ionhad bee~brobn up. Befote I gave the' Bub-Inspeotor the !)i'der,to 
~rr~, the boys, I I\id consider under~ what clau.!Ie of section 11' the offence 
.Jbuld come. I do not go aboui with the Penal (]Qde in my pocket. I knew 
weil enough that there had b~n a breach of theo:peaoe and my objeot was to 
get hold of the'o!Ienders, and prove to them that they had done wrong. By 

.. breaoh of the peaoe, " I mean that the jatra was broken up by the boys. 
Q-You felt that \he prestige of your office had been outraged? 
A.-Bless you, no. I have no prestige to maintain other than the 

dignity and supremacy of the law. I am a very humble man with no 
exaggerated notion of my personal importance in the district. Having given 
orders to the Sub-Inspector to arrest the boys, I went to the hostel at about 
1-30 P. M. that day. Mr. Mann (Principal of the College) \f'!ts there then. 
I personally ordered the removal of 8 of the boys who were identified in my 
presence. I gave no orders about the others. I know that they were 
afterwards taken. I myself ordered the removal of 8 boys and afterwards 
others were taken. I told the Sub-Inspector, "You have got 12 of them; 
you may arrest any others should you think it necessary." 

Q.-Did you tell the Sub-Inspector that he was to show "no civility, no 
kindness, no mercy to the boys?" 

A.-I did not use those words. I shall admit nothing" to that effect." 
I merely said that I would stand no nO:lsense. I do not positillely deny that 
I made use of those words. My object was merely to show that there was 
to be no nonsense; that the ca~e was to go on without any obstruction. I 
oould not swear that" I did not use those words. I neither admit nor deny 
having used them. I did not direct the Sub-Inspector that the boys were 
not to be released on bail before 24 hours. To the best of my recollection, 
I Iilaid it aloud generally, but not as an order to the Sub-Inspeotor spellially. 
It is quite possible, however, that I left that impression em the Sub­
Inspector's mind. I 'said something about its being impossible to release the 
boys before 24 hours, but gave no peremptory order that they were not to 

-,be released before 24 hours. I never meant that my remark should be 
80 cons\rued by the Suh-Tnspector. I might have said on that occasion, 
"I mean to enforce the law 16 annas." I gave no orders at a stage when 
the investigation had barely commenced. I have no recollection that while 
I was at the hostel, anybody suggested to me that the boys ought to bb re­
leased on bail. I was out fishing on that 13th July, when Mr. Mann came 
to me, and requested me to let the boys go on bail. I told Mr. Mann tha.t ., 
had no intention of keeping them for 24 hours. Mr. Mann asked me to 
release the boys before dinner. I said I did not know, but would see about it. 
I told Mr. Mann this, because it depended upon how the investigation of the 
case would prooeed. Before I saw him at the tank, I do not remember Mr. 
Jdann asking me that the boys should be bailed. At the tan1c he. asked me 
aeveral times-.-in fact, he badgered my life out. I said I would be iOing 



dOwn .. to see how the ease Wall getting.OD. A·ToJhe be&t' of my re(\~,l)ti~' 
1 do not think I discussed with Mr. M'ann'tha! thad the power to \:$eP ~ 
boys 24, hours without bail, '1. do not teoollect saying .uything to Mr. Ma~ 
about the 24 hours. Mr. Vann did tell me .that there were several boyg' 
among those I had arrested who Had never gone to the jq.tra, 

Q.-Did you not say in reply to that statement of Mr. Manu's, ·loll;nnot 
help it: the innooent must sufi'er with the guilty? .. • 

A.-I believe something of that sort passed. 
Q.-Did you not make thiH remark to Mr. Mann :-" I shall make the " 

boys pay in the shape of fine what I have subscritled to the jatra f" 
A.-No. Befure Mr. Mann went away. I gLlve him no final answer as 

to whether i- would release (,he boys w:thin 24 hours or not. I do not 
reoolleot that Mr. Mann solid anything to me ahou~ my power to keep the 
boys for 24 hours. I am not prepared to SAY that I h,ld no conversation with 
Mr. Mann about tho 24 hOl1r~, but I certainly have no rooolleotion of it o.t 
the present moment. 

Q.-Were you aware at the time that you did 80, that to refu!le bail in 
bailable cases is illegal? 

A.-Bail was never refuBod to PlY knowledgo. I waR aware that to have 
refused bail would h~.,·e been illegaL When I got into my tum·tum on leav­
ing the hospital. I went to u distunc.e of 2 or 3 yards from It, and said to the 
Suh-Inspector that it would not he necessary to keep the boys for 24 hours., 
I did not intend others to overheJr that. This bappened before I saw Mr. 
Mann at the tank. I saw Mr, Mann there two hours after. I did not tell 
Mr. Mann that I had given these I'riv.,te instru(',tions to the Sub-lnflpeotor. 
I may ha,'e told Mr. Mann that I merely wanted to frighten the boys: I do 
not reoollect. I won't deny it. I do not remember. but very possibly I did. 

Q.-Now that you remember you whispored into the Sub-Inspector'8 ear 
about not keeping thorn for 24 hours, does that bring to your mind that you 
bad said he was not to let them go for 24 hours? 

A.-I cannot say so positively. 
Q.-What was the necessity for your whispering this into tho Sub­

Inspeotor's ear? 
A. Simply that he might know that what I said was not to be acted 

upon. I know Nobin Dey, the formal complainant in this case. The first 
time I saw him af.er the oocurrence WIlS in the b:tzaar. Nowhere else to 
my knowledge. I have spoken to him in the last 2 or 3 days. ,I do not 
think I saw him bofore that. I thlllk that at one time it was quit' JIOillible 
the barlil.'ari people were not going to press the charge. I cannot be oerta,in 
no", wheUler that was before the hearing of the case. I have not kept .. ' 
cop)' of the record. I am not sure whether it was before or after the ~' 

hearing 04 the case. I have had a conversation with the blltwilri peopJ. ' 
. as ~ the desirability of going on with ~he C/tft. 1 do not think itWils Wi": 



t 44 , ) 

)jelria Dey. 1 certainly told ibem that they were not to baak out or~'­
b ... 6. I did send Nf some of the bar'wari people. There wel'e about half"a·' 
dozen of ihem, but Ido not think Nobin Dey was amongst tbem. I sent for 
them for the pl}-l'pose of urging them to go on with the case. I did -teU 
them, .. I have done 80 much for you, you must not now lea"e me in the 
lureh." I did not send for the barwari people again. I believe they had 
been to my place once before of their own accord. Before \he case was 
brought into Court on the 25th July, I certainly did not remark to any­
bQdy that as the case had got into the newspapers, it could not now be 
dropped. I do not recollect anybody bringing me a translation of any 
vernacular paper. I believe I took a copy of the Statesman to Mr. T. in 
which I had been desoribed as a " lunatic. " I have no recol\e"Ction of taking 
any other newspaper to Mr. T. I also showed Mr. O. (the presiding 
Magistrate) the same copy of the Statesman, 

Q.-Whil,t wal:l Y'JUr object in showing it i.o Mr. O. ? 
A.-Because I thought the paragraph very amusing. The fact is, there 

was a question as to whom the honor of the title of fool really belonged, 
whether to Mr, T. or to Mr. 0., but it was eventually agreed to split it. I 
lhought it a very good joke, knowing that it was only Mr. Knight (Editor of 
the Statesman). 

Q.-Did it not strike YOlL that it 1vas very improper for you to talee a 
:paper oj that kind to an officer before whom tke case waR pending ? 

A.-No it dId 11-ot so strilce me. Mr. ~. was not in KrilSlmagar when the 
oocurrence took place. He arrived, I beheve, 011 the Saturday morning 
following. 

Q.-Did you disclI.88 thi~ case with Mr. T. on his arrival t 

A.-O dear, yl'S J 8everal times, We threshed it out. Infact I am 
Aattd-in-glol'e wit}, Mr. T. in this case. 

The Conrt-I doubt if you ",un go on with these questions. Mr. T .. as 
the head police officer of the district might have had any number of conversa­
thinS with Major R, but they are privileged communications, and in the 
tnterast of the State, should not be revealed without Mr. 1'.'8 oonsent. Befo1'll 
.allowing these questions, I must oonsult him. There is a Government order 
on the 8ubjeot. 

Mr. Ghose-Bui Mr. T. is not a police officer. Government Qrde1'8 have 
-eot the effect of laW'. The law is supreme, and we cannot have Govemment 
'Circulars to override it. The law says that in ",srtain cases certain matters 
.re privileged, but I have never before heard that communioations between a 
Police Officer and a Magistrate are privileged. If, when Mr. T. is examin­
<ed. he sayll that answers to my questions would divulge a Stat.e secret, OJ 

If the Government has ordered that this should be regarded as a State irjal~ 
·*hai would be dift'erent. The Court is probably thinking of a .~tioDtbf ·th~ 



( .. '.43" or 
E~' A~ WWOb refe~ 10 emllial reOQl'lb. I shall gladly forq.n turthv 
~exan1inatlon if either Mr. T. or M_;Jw R~ will say' Lha,t the publioin_ 
elk ~. likely to euifer by the dis.closure of any of fj{.ir conv6l'II&tloalt 
regarding the calle. If, however, they say that the publio intereeta will 
sirlfer, I am ®titled to cross-examine them all to their grounds'for saying BO. 

The Court-J,.,pannot allow the crolis"6xamination upon tbis POint to go 
on, unless I hear Bome definite expression of opinion from the two offi06lll 
concerned. 

Mr. GhOlle-Major R. has not objeoted yet, but if he has any objection, it 
lihould be recorded. There are ct'rtain matters t<:> which the Court oannot 
object; it is the W1tness' privilege. 

After somc.curther dis(lus~ion. tlit' cross-eJUlmination of Major R. on thls 
point Wall rf)served, pending rcfe:'enl:e to Mr. T. the DIstrict Magistrate. 

Mr. Ghose-Then I understand the C\JHrt hus ruled that this matter is to 
be reser\'"ed although Majnf R. has made no objoctIoll. 

The Court--Yes, I want to hear what Mr. '1', hUR to say. 
Mr. Gllose-But J muy not call Mr. T. at al!. 
The Court-In that case the precau~iOIl. though II. necessary one, would 

prove to be a needless one. I consider th<lt Mr. T. has the right to objeot 
UfO he is a prospective witncHs. 

MlI.jor R.'s cross-exu'lllllaLion c')ntmncd,-I told the Sub-Inspector that 
the case had better Ilot be sout up untIl Mr, T.'s '\:ltmn. My objl)ot in giving 
that order Wl\S that I might have the h"nefit of Mr. T.'a II.dvico. 

Q.-Then It wa~ wHh tho h(mt');it oJ that udviee that you direoted 
the case to be sent up? 

A.-The ca~e v.as practICally forced to go up. It was pot Bent UP in 
oonsequence of that advice. 

Q.-Did that advice Illduce you to send up the case? 
A.-" Iaduce "is hardly the word. The effeet of Mr. T.'9 advioe was 

to cODvinoo me that it would be as well th"t the case should not be sent up, 
but thflt an arrangement should be made to punish the boys departmentally. 
There was no help but" to send up the case, because I could not manage to 
arrange to "end up the case dejJurtmentally. I remember a deputation of 
pleaders waiting on me and Mr. T. to induce me not to prosecute this cue. 

Q.-Did you and Mr. T. then say you were willing to make over the 
ease to Mr. Mann on the condition that some of the bO.Y8 should be flogged, 
and the others should have their lives made a burden to them by being 
.. worried" for a month? Did you not make that a necessary eondltioll of 
Qropping the case? 

A.-Yea. That Wall the hnpres810n ieft OD my mind. 

Q.-Is it not a fact that Mr. Mann declined to give I!lIch an __ ~ 
w.\int,! 



· A.-I am not aware of that. Mr. Maim Iud )lr. T, ~ i. out hftW!1b 
tii.maelves. I had nothing to say to that. . 

Q.-About the time that these negotiations were going on, did you not 
remark to Mr. T ... Why don't you do your duty ana make OftlJ" the case to 
Mr. 0," or words to that effect? 

A.-<Jertainly not: I should never think of making lIbeh a speech to Mr. 
T. He is my lIuperior officer, and is responsible for his own aotions. I hope 
I.hall Dot be so wanting in common courtesy. 

Q.-Did you make any BuggeHtiull, however courteously, that the only 
course left to him was to make the case over to Mr. O. ? 

A.-I asked him if he would be so GOOD as to make over the case to Mr. 

O. for trial. 
Q.-And what did he Bay? 
A.-I don't think he said anything at that time; the matter was left an 

open question. 
Q.- Where !Vas this 8ugf/e8tion made 1 
A.-In Mr. 1'. '8 south verandah 
Q.-Had you any necessity for suggesting to him before what Magistrate 

the case should go? 
A.-No: no necessity, But I thought it just all well to have a European 

Magistrate, instead of one of the native Magistrates, who are always 
amongst the boys and might be biassed. 

Q.-In other words, you thought that any of the native Magistrates 
might a<'.quit the boys? 

A.-I preferred them to be tried by an English Magistrate. I thought I 
... more likely to get justice from a European Magistrate. 

Q.-Is it not a fact that you thought that a native Magistrate would be 
likely to let off the boys? 

A.-The chances of their getting off would be gl'eater. alld the chances 
le8., of any European j[agi8tral~ letting tMII! o,?"! 

Q.-Do /Iou ofte71 make .~uch suggl'btiolls pnvately in cases in which !fOU 

are interested' 
A.-Yes. I have occasionally done so. I hllvc often said to Mr. T. I 

wi8h lIoU would give me so·and·so for this casp. 
Q.-And these su.ggestions you make verbally in the house of the Magis-

trate. 
A.-Yes. 
Q.-JIave you ttllked about this case with any Magistrate besidu Mr. T.t 
A.-Yes. in a general way. I have joined in conver8ations about tM. 

case. For in~tance. one evening I remember talking about it with Mr, O. I 
t~nk it was after the first hearing of the case. 

Q.-Diji you speak to him at all before the case wai made 0:rflr to him , 
A.-J 'impl" mentioned tile case. I think J .aid to. him: .. I (J,,,,. grnng 
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to~fet Yi* to ;..., illzt ItMdtfI.t,''" Da66." aM ke. said. "All right.!' .~~ • 
..othin9 jwtlwr 8aid.

m 
, 

Q.-Had you any talk v;ith Mr. O. about this oCCUt'T'efl-ce' 
t,M-, ! I 

A.-Yes., 
Q.-Did ~ te~l him your view oj the affair, 
A.-In a narrativ8'jorm I did. 

f -
Q.-Afier tlUi aase was made over ~ Mr. 0., did you have any oonver-

sation with him regarding the case? 
A.-I have already said that I did speak to him after the first hearing; 

but subsequently finding that you were making Ii big busine88 of it, I avoided 
it. 

Q.-When ;ou as'ked Mr. T. to make over the ease to Mr. 0 .• I believe 
you were aware that Mr. T. was the appellate oourt? 

A.-No, I was not aware of it at the time. 
Q.-Do you mean to say that you were not aware of the faet that 

appeals from Mr. 0:8 decisions are heard by Mr. T. ? 
A.-If vou ask me that way. I admit they are, but that never oro8sed 

my mind. 
Q.-Then you do know and did know at that time that appeals ordina­

rily lie to Mr. T. 
A.-Yes. 
Q.-Did you ever tell Mr. O. that the boys had become very unruly. or 

make any other general statement against the conduot of the boys? 
A.-Possibly I did, but have no precise recollection. It i8 highly prob. 

able thllt I did. They won't be unruly if I remain here. 
Mr. Ghose-I beg to differ from you. The course you have a.dopM4 ia 

best calculated to make them unruly. 
Major R-Of course if you incite them, they will be. 
Mr. Ghose-On the contrary, my only wish is to establish, to quote your 

own words, "the supremacy of the law." 
Major R-Indeed, that is all that I wish to do. 
CroBs-examination continue d.-I did censure Peary, head-constable, for 

not arresting the boys. I walked into him sixteen annas. 
Q.-Had you any conversation with Mr. O. about this case on the 26ih 

July and the %nd August? 
A.-After you took up the case we left it alone. After the crou-eJ;­

amination of Bipro Das (the Inspector) and the Sub-Inspeotor, I do Dot 
think I had any conversation with Mr. O. on the subject. Yes about tbe' 
iime ~e Stateaman'. report appeared (30th July), I did have a OODV$lI&tioD 

with Mr. O. by way of jhugra tukrar (quarrel and wrangle). 
Q.-What 1"&8 the jhugra tukrar , . _ .. 
A..-lfell about that time Mr. O. and I ha.d a dil/cumon a.6otit ~ ~ 

~I ntard to thil/ CaBe. Mr. O. Baid thClt up to that ti1lUl no r>lence IsatffJ41i 
flJl/clo,ed. ' 



· .Q.-7'ke" I srtp]1(Jle you argued with him that an oftmceJUD btlm~; 
c~, ." 

A.-Yes. He did not ag7'ee with me, and he laughed at ~1I exposition 
of the law. 

Mr. Ghos~-Yes. Any Magistrate, I should have thought who knew 
his business would laugh. 

Q.-Well. he laughed and did not agree with you, and ..you tried to 
Convince him? 

A.-Yes. but not 8ucccssju.lly. 
Q.-Where did all this t'J.ke place? 
A.-It was in Mr. O. ',9 own house. 
Q.-And this was after all the evidence of the wiLnesses for the prosecu­

tion had been recorded, and after Ashutosh had been examined? 
A.-Yes. About the 2nd August. 
Q.-Then you were very anxious to "on vince Mr. O. that the facts 

amcunteu to an offence? 
A.-Certainly. I was very anxIOus to gain my case-a8 much as you are 

to gain yours. 
Q.-And was it wUh that object you went to convince Mr. O. at hi,9 

houstl , 
A.-Certainly. 
Q.-Did you tell anybody at the heginnlllg of the case, or before that, 

words to this effect: "I do not care whether the case stands or falls; the 
boys will be hairanned and perashanned; (worried ll.Ld harassed) even if 
they get off, they will receive a lesson? " 

A.-It is highly probable I used the words hairanned and perashanned ; 
the expression is so entiNlly my own, that I feel sure I must have used it. 

Q.-Might you have'said so to Mr. O. ? 
A.-No, I do not think so. I do not recollect having said so to Mr. T. 

I might have said so to Prasanna Babu (a pleader). 
Q.-8o you did think likely the boy~ might get off ? 
A.-Certainly not. I thought it a clear case. 
Q.-Did you say, "At any rate their parents would have to pay for tbe 

stamps and pleaders' fees, whether tbey got off or not?" 
A.-Yes. 
Q.-While this case was going on, and after it had commenced, and even 

sometime b~fore that, were you quite sure what the object of the "unlawful 
assembly" was ? 

A:-Yes, to blllElak up the jatra, of course. 
Q.-Were you all along certain of the clause of section 141, that the 

case would fall under 1 

A.-Yes, clause 5. That has been my opinion since the caSe has been 
laUnched. I ncyer said that it came under clause 3. Clause 3 wAs 1I\J8,i6M' 



ad. but; I .tuck to clause 5. I simply made the case oVer totbe IIUlDacto:. ' 
and did not bother my head about the olalijie. My impression wa81hat' 
the oifenlle weuld fall under seotion 141. I did not SugPBt any other 
olfenoe ; but Mr. T. suggested section 268 (Public Nuisanoe), imd aooOrding 
to that suggestion. I mentioned that seotion to the Court at the last hearing' 
of the oase. 

Q.-Do t understand you to mean that you never at any time thought 
that the objeot of the boys was to oommit misohief or intimidaie oriminally t 

A.-Yes, by breaking up the jatra. 
Q.-Then you thought that the objeot of the assembly was to break up 

the jatra, and Ii did not matter to you under wha.t seotion the oase would 
oome? 

A.-The fact was that the jatra, had been broken up ; the objeot of the 
boys was palpable-it was to break up the jatra, and that was quite 
sufficient for my purpose; our 1)Usiness was to find out who had broken up 
the jatra, Ilnd to take them into custody. I folt sure the law would "fetch 
'om somehow." 1 did not bother myself about sections; it was sufficient for 
me that a disturbance had occurred. 

Q.-Have you ever been at Oxford on Commemoration d(lY ? 
A.-No. 
Q-Have you ever been at Exeter Hall when a popular preaobor has 

been speaking? 
A.-No. Exeter Hall is not in my line I always koep out of it. 
Q.-If a public speaker were stopped by cluppillg and hl~sing, would you 

not also consider that a disturbance and a riot? 
A.-Not unless some force had oeell used. 
Q.-On the 7th of this month, dId you write to aIlyiJody to this effect 

that "1 am in a position to say that chlirgos will be drawn up at the next 
hearing of the case? " 

A.-I did. 
Q.-What made you say that you were in a position to do so ? 
A.-Because the Inspector informed me that a charge had been drawn 

up, and I asked Mr. O. if it were true. 
Q.-Did you say to anybody that you would have dropped the case at 

this stage, if it had not been" official cowardice" to do so ? 
A.-Mr. T. wrote over to inform nle that he had sent a comtnunicaiiott 

10 Mr. Mann, in Which he had used those words, and in whieh I e\l~rel1 

acquiesced. I did not wish it to be thought that I was afraid of yoU, Mr. 
Gbr>se, or anybody else. 

Q. -Then 1 understand that but for this oonsideration of " offioial cowar­
dioe, .. you would have dropped the case? 

• a,-l a\ould not have consented to drop it ~ltogether j it depended upon 



( so ) 
b<lw ~ opposite tide took it. I ~lillve the fint qgestioa ca]!l6 from 

'Mt. Mimn. 
Q ...... Did 'lOU tell anybody tha~ you must press for a severe ~hmeni ? 

,A. .... I believe I did. 
Q.-Did you Bay that if these boys had not been defeIl.ded bY M;. Ghoee, 

they would have been let off with a slight fine? 
A.-No. I used,no words to convey that meaning. I said that I thought 

a great "shindy" had been kicked up about a small matter, and thai it would 
be just as well if a fine were imposed. I knew thai the boys could not pay, 
but I know there is a fund which can stand it. 

By Court.-Do you remember receiving any telegram fromothe Inspect~.; 
General of Jails from JesBore regarding this case? 

A.-The Lieutenant-Governor wanted to know what progress it had 
made; it was a day or two before we went to Ranaghat. I went to Mr. O. 
on receipt of that telegram to confirm my own impression, and to give the 
Lieutenant-Governor accurate information. 

Major R., re-examined by Inspector Bipro Das Mitter. I went to the 
hostel on my own account, because the Sub-Inspector said he was obstructed 
in the inquiry. Mil'tunjoy Babu, Ram Babu, the Government pleader, 
Prasanna Kumar Bose, and Jadunath Chatterjee, pleaders, came to ask me 
to drop the case. 

Q.-Why did you wish the case to be tried by a European Magistrate? 
A.-There was a case before a native Deputy Magistrate in which the 

accused was charged with rape, but the Deputy Magistrate would not send 
him to hajut. but took him about from place to place till 2 o'clock in the 
morning. (Objected to by Mr. Ghose.) 

Mr. Ohose here wished the Court to ask Major R. whether that case did 
. not happen after the trial of the present case had commenced. 

A.-Yes, that case only confirms my view of the influence of pleaders 
on native Magistrates. 

Major R., turther cross-examined on 16th August by Mr. Ghose-Before 
I orderad the arrest of the boys on the morning of the 13th July, I had heard 
nothing about the cutting of the benches. 

'Q.-Were you aware on that morning, before you ordered the arrests. 
that the iatTa had been going on for nearly two hours before it was 
disturbed? 

A.-I never gave the thing a thought. 
Q.-Before you ordered the arrest of the boys did anybody tell you what 

motive the boys had in caUSing the disturbance? 
A.-No. It would be too late to tell the colour of its feathera after the 

bird had flown. 
Q.-When did you first hear tha t the benches had been cut or ~ 

that mohling? 



A-That motalag I did not h~, th., the .... hf,4, bee'lt'~ dlf, 
.removett I dtd no~,.hear it at ali t'bat da.". I hoard 'i "feu; .. fim ii" 
in thw' Court. 

Q.-Had you 'been informed in any way before the . cast oaifte inio 
Court; that there had been any row about seats. 

A.-A row tool: place, and that was quite sufficient for me. I did not 
think it worth while to enquire how it oommenoed. 
. Q.-When you went to the barwari, i. it the faot that you notioed 
your own constables were present there' 

I did not notioe it. I had to send for the Head Inspeotor. I saw the 
constables who were at the jatra before I went to the barwari. I did 
., ask" these ·constabl~s how the row originated. 

Q.-I lfupp08e that from the beginn£ng 1/0U hal'8 been acting in concerf 
with Mr. T. (the District Magistrate) il. this case f 

A.-We are hand-in-glU1,e in this matter-if yuu like, 16 annas. 
Q.-You told us yesterday that you had discussed th" evidence II.s 

well as the law of the case from time to time with Mr. T. 
A.-I did not say we discussed the evidence. We discussed the law, 

and went through the Penal Code togpther. 
Q.-Did you et',3r say to Mr. O. that Mr. T. had agreed with 1I0"r 

view of the casl!' 
A.-Having ha1. a consult'ltion with Mr. T., I toole Mn36 of the law 

as he pointed it out to me, and then I rep"llted it all to Mr. 0., d1Jd, as 
I told you on the last o"c<lsion, he did not agree with 11Ie. 

Q.-Did you tell Mr. 0. you had consuittld Mr. T.? 
A.-I do not remember. It is part of my duty to see and consult 

with the Magistrate daily. It would be a work of .9upereroyation to have 
told Mr. 0, that I had had a consultation wah ],Jr. T. I took for granted 
that he knew it. I said that I should hke M,.. O. to Irll thtl caae, becalMe 

I did not think the native Jl[rl!]istrate, hJre would do justice to the case. 
I told Mr. T. 80 at the time. That i8 why I selected Mr. Q. so that there 
might be no "bazaar sympathies." 

Q.-During your residence at KrishllaS'ar have you ever been to the 
house of any of the native Deputy Magistrates to talk about oases 

pending before them in which you are interested? 
A.-I do not think I have. Since I have been in this district, I have 

had many cases in which I am interested before native Deputy MagistrateQ• 

I frequently go to the houses of native gentlemen. I have been to ~e 
bo1U8 of Babu Tarini Kumar Ghose, Deputy Magistrate. 

Q.-Was it you who brought to the notice of Xr. T. th.t ~ 
proaouto1'8 were willing to go on with this calie ? 

,--14id. 



(f,-'!)idfOU "ask .,;: T. to ill8Ue {!.~~mQWI on tbe pioseolltOcr. and 
tell him to .'~ <Ii with the oal:Je? ' " ,. 

A-I "know nothing about it. . 
Q . ..!..Did you at any time tell Mr. O. what you expeoted Ashutosh 

!4ukerjee to prove, before he was examined? 
A.-Yes, I mentioned it in general terms in the form of a narrative. 

The District Magistrate Mr. T--- was subsequently 
c~lIed and w,as cross-examined by the defence i the follow­
ing portions of his evidence are important:-

Q.-Do you consider yourself as one of the prosecutors in this oase? 
A,-A8 head of the police 1 take an interest in it. I was away when 

the occurrence took place. I gathered the facts of the case from the 
District Superintendent and the police papers, also from some pleaders. 
The first I heard of it was from Major R. 

* * * * * * 
When the case came up in A form, I certainly held that an inquiry 

should be held departmentally or criminally. I dJd not then take the trouble 
to inquire if the facts disclosed an offence, I left the consideration of that 
to a judicial oourt. Major R. might have suggested to me that the oase 
should .be made over to Mr, O. If h] 8ay8 he did, I would certainly take it 
jor granted. He might have given me hid'reason for wishing, but I oannot 
reoollect. Ma.jor R. occasionally suggests to me thelt I should transfer cases 
to particular J[a.yistnrtes. I look upon th!! tran~jer oj cases as a judicial 
and not an e.1:ecutive matter. 

Q.-Then injudicJial matters do lund''''Bland that you. generally allow 
the District Superintenderlt, or any pol£ee officer, to suggest to you what 
cour1/8 should be adoptr,d in a prtrficular C(J8~ ? 

A.-He might make a 81~ggH"ltOn, and if I saw no hitI'm in it. I would 
make no objection. To my recollection Major R. did not tell me that no 
native Magistrate ought to try this case, 

Q.-Ras he ever made such a re-lUeB~ to you, that a particular case 
IIhould not be made over to a native but to a European Magistrate? 

A.-Cedai1lIy, he did so l1! the case of Nadir Ally, The High Colirt set 
aside my order of transfer. Sinoe making over the case to Mr. 0., I qave 
been disollsliing daily the ca~e in all its legal aspeots. I made suggfffltion alt 
to what 8ectiofk~ should be preslied. I have given instructions to the Inspec;or 
to press for a conviotion. 

Q.-":What made you give euoh instructions? 
A.-Because of several things that ha ve oome out in tho way of obstruo­

tiOIl-, threats, newspaper writing, and subsoriptions from respectable 
J&mindars; a.lso beoause the boys require a lesson to oounteract what the1 
are being taught by outsiders, and to teach them that they md'st nQt be a 
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public nllisance by doing acts ~. ·m.ust neoe8!llu'ily apnOrt.Ple pi$ie.,. 
Lal~rly, alllO, r have reason to bel~ve that our good faith bd"en imtruiU­
ed, and I was very anxiollll for the ord~aJ whioh I am now going' throUlh: 
By our good faith. I mean Major R. 's and mine:' 

Q.-Have you any reason for supposing that your good faith haa been 
challenged? . ' 

A.-A letter whioh I saw gave me this impression, I also saw that my 
tlJ8,mination was to be taken, and oertain fllcte were to be disclosed. By 
.. obstruction" I mean that so many persons are pleading to get the boys off., 
and the Distriot Superintendent being threatened with a big case as the 
result of his persistence. In any cuse I would have pressed for a oonviotion ! 
I only do so mor\ particularly n{)w. Had there not been this idea that we 
ha\'e been acting unjustitiably, I am not 8ure but tha ~ I might have listened 
to a compromise if it could have be"n pfi'ec'ed. Certainly 1 am personally 
interested in the ('on"'iction of the /J()IIS. both a.~ the head of the distriot and 
(HI official wh').~e action ha .• /IN.'n qllr~lion~d. I do not think I wished when 
1 made Over the case to Mr. 0" that any particu/,lr boy shU/dd be convicted. 
but that the ca .• e .• houIJ result in a conllielion if pnssible. Of the Bubsorip­
tions from zernindars, I have he,Lrd from several peopla as well as 
fr<lm Major R. I 1M ve made no persona I enquiry into the merits of 
this case. 

Q.-lfave you had allY talk with tI/f' prl!~irlll!g Muyistrnfe about 
this case? 

A.-Yes. 011 two ot:(·asion .•. a. frwnd<. bu.l not as /wtwren 8uperior and 
subordinate-not by wall of argument. Ont1(1 I asked a question about the 
general aspect of the case, and another time the information was 
volunteered. It is not my custom to consult with judlCial offieers as to 
the particular sections under which a C'l~e should he tried. 

Q.-While you are having discussions with Major R. regarding the 
legal aspect Df the case, waH the fact present before you that, in the 
event of un appl'Ul ag.linst the prtl~iJing Magistrate's decision, you were 
the appellate oourt ? 

A.-Yes, and it was for that reason that I had made up my mind 
from the first to apply to the Commissioner for an appellate court, 
and not hear the appeal myself. 

After a protracted trial and some adjournments the case 
resulted in the boys being acquitted on the 19th August on the 
ground that no offence had been disclosed. 

The proceedings in this extraordinary case attracted the 
attention of the Lieutenant-Governor of Bengal-Sir Rivers 
Th<lttl"son~-who, in an elaborate Resolution, transferred ~rid 



otberwi5e punished both the Di$tiiict Superintendent of Polioe, 
Major R.: and his friend, Mr. T., the District r{agistrate;'1itith 
whotn he waS "hand-in-glove," an officer of many years 
standing .. The following extracts from the Government Re~o­
lution will be read with interest :-

6. • • • It is surprising that a perusal of the papers should not have 
ehown an officer of Mr. 1.'s experienoe and standing that such a cha.:ge 
could never hold good, and if he had made the enquiries, whioh he ought to 

have made, Into the ciroumstances of the oase, a.nd the manner in whi'Oh 
ibe polioe investigation had been conducted, it is Bcarcely ~ossible to believe 
that he would not have seen that the case should aot be proceeded with. 
He has acknowledged in his evidence that he made no such enquiry. He 
further committed tbe very grave error of allowing Ma.jor R. to suggest to 
him that a partioular officer should bll ~tllected to try the oase. It is no 
defence or palliation of this indiscretion to assert as Mr. T. asserts, that 
other complainants have made similar applications to him; because Major 
R. in his position of District Superintendent of Police, was not an ord~ary 
oomplainant and the very least acquaintance with the circumstances of tlle 
case must have shewn that he was pressing this pros{'clltion with an amount 
of eagerness aad pertinacity whicb only some great State trial would have 
justified. The reasons, too on which Major R. urged hiB application were 
unjustifiable; and if Major R.'s extremely improper attempt to induce the 
shop-keepers to press the case had corne to his knowledge the MR,gistrate 
should have taken immediate and serious noticA of it. He states that-"he 
knew nothing about tbe men being sent for. But one of the worst features 
in the whole case is that a prosecution, commenced without any legal 
jmltification, has been pressed forward in a peremptory and injudicious 
manner without any real control from tbe Magistrate of the district and 
practically at tbe will and dictation of the Superintendent of Police: The 
Lieutenant-Governor is certain that not in many districts of Bengal could 
8uoh a perversion of authority have been tolerated, and, in his opinion, here 
it waa clearly the duty of the Magistrate, to inptruct tbe police to abapdon 
the case, a.nd if he considered it necessary to take any further notic" of the 
turbulent. cOllduct of the boys, he should have called the attention of the 
Eduoation Department to the matter. It is quite clear from the communica­
tion a.ddressed to the Director of Public Instruction by the Principal of the 
Krisbnagar College, that the latter was prepared to deal in an a.dequate 
manner with a.ny misconduct, not amounting to a oriminal offenoe, of which 
'he students might have been guilty. 

'1. It is not neoessary to dwell at length on the subsequellJt prooeedui«s; 
't'h. Lieutenant-Governor hall read with s~pri8e and ~ the ~ .~ence 



of both Mr. T. and Major R. JI,Ob_rves iliat they Urt& tWst ~l of 
tl1~)Ii8oorded statements require 8l~nation .Of 'oorrection, bU~ \hey ha,.. 
noi supplied this defeot in their explanations. Mr. Rivers Thompson m,," 
.xpress hill strong reprobation of the endeavour made by Major }:t., in private 
OOJW8rsation, i.o persuade the Assistant Magietrate to take his view of the 
legal aspects of the case. and the attempt III&de on the 15th August foo 
obtain a conviction for nuisance Wlder seotion %90 Penal Code. when it was 
olearly apparent the charge of unlawful assembly under seotion 143 Pena 1 
Code. would not stand, seems to have been injudicious and vexatious. The' 
oomplaints now made by Mr. T. and Major R. of the ineffioient way in 
which the proseoution was (lOnductfJd aTe unintelligible. Major R. state6 
in his evidence l'hH t he oonsidered illmself dl!·jacto .proseoutor, and HI:. 1;'. 
stated that he had discussed the case daily with Major R. 11.8 to its legal 
aspects; that he had suggested the sections and that he had instructed the 
Inspeotor who oonduoted the prosecCition to press for a conviction. If there­
fore. the proseoution was mismanaged, these two officers must on their 
own shewing. be held reRponsibJe for its defeots. But the Lieutenant-Gover­
nor is unable to accept the suggestion that if the case had been differently 
oorrduoted in Court the result would have been different. It seems olear to 
him that if Mr. O. had more experience ill judicial work, and if he h~ been 

,an offioer of greater standing, he would probably have seen his way to 
dispose o£ the case at a very early stage of the pro'leedings. He possibly 
made some mistakes in prooedure, notably in not reading over to Mr. T. 
and Major R. the evidence given by them. But the deoision come to by 
him was undoubteoily correct, and baving regard to the official prelll!lIre 
exerted for a oonviction, even if Jnly with the idoa of a nominal pena.lty. 
it is olear that the right result of the case does much Ilredlt to his impar~a­
lity and firmness. 

8. Upon the whole case the Lieutenant-Governor regrets to be OOllS­

tl'ai:ued to record that he has never come aoross proceeding. whioh betrayed 
a greater want of sense and judgment than those whioh htl hali now been 
obliged to oriticise and oondemn. The precaution of half an hour's 
i;emperate enquiry in the first instance, must have satisfied the district 
authorities, not only that no penal offence had been oommitted. but that 
taking the ocourrenoes in their most objeotionable !igh$. they exhibited IS 

IIlldden outbreak on the part of a parcel e,f Bohool-boYI to express a not 
unreasonable diBSatisiaction at the treatment they had received at the 
jatra. To magnify this into a oriminal offence. to haul the oulprite to the 
police look-up. to threaten them whh a long detention under oustodJ" and 
lo commence IMld carry on a proseoution against them in the court ~ 

.the e.xpreg view of causing harassment and annoyance, are aO*8 which are 
: •• unjusti*le a8 they are discreditable to the administration. Thili wans 

"offud3tnentlDd discretion on the par.t both of Mr. T. lind MajOr .... ·:~ 
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a."avated by the facl that overtures for, conciliation on what appsar to im" 
Lieutenant-Governor to be very reasonable terms, offered by the CoIWB8l 
'for the defence were eummarly ,,~jected; and that among the reASOIl8 
,assigned by Mr. T. for pressing for a conviction under the Penal Code, are 
the extraordinary ones that there had been "obstruction, threats, newspaper 
writings and subscription fram outsiders." and that he wished to court an 
enquiry into the good faith of himself and the District Superintendent. 
Mr. Rivers Thompson finds it difficult to understand how officers in their 
position could have allowed themselves to be influenced in pushing forward 
a criminal prosecution by considerations such as these, and he would have 
r,jected the imputation of these motives as incredible, jf b'!,sed on evidence 

"u.s. convincing than the admissions made in Court and in the explanations 
now received. It is not by a mere expression of censure that the Lieutenant 
Governor can l'ijeet such a case and his sentence must be that Mr. T. should 
beill'degraded to the second grade of Magistrates for six months, and that 
MajO? R, now in the second grade, should be reduced to third grade of 
Distriot Superintendents of Police, and be debarred from promotion for 
one year. Both officers will be transferred from a district in which, by 
these recent proceedings, they must have lost all influence for good. It ill 
with extreme regre~ that the Lieutenant-Governor finds himself obliged to 
come to this decision, because he is not unaware of the good services which 
Major R. has rendered in the Police Department. 

The disclosures made by Major R. and by Mr. T. will no 
doubt seem startling to those who are accustomed to the pro­
cedure of courts of justice in England, but they are nothing 
new to those who are conversant with the manner in which 
criminal justice is administered in India under the present 
system, combining executive and judicial power in one and 
the same Magistrate. The District Magistrate is generally 
" ha:nd-in-glove" with the District Superintendent of Police 
and all subordinate magistrates cannot but be under the direct 
influence of the District Magistrate who guides a'nd shapes 
their opinions in all judicial matters. The trying magistrate 
Mr. O. found himself in a most difficult position; he could not 
help being under the influence of his official superior, and 
although he ultimately did justice in the ca~e he did not do so 
lttithout considerable hesitation and reluctance. 
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CASE NO· 1.4 

the Rungpore q~r Case-1886 
In the district of Rungpore, ~abu Annada ,Prasad Sen 

possessed- oonsiderable landed properties, and lived in the 
same house with his paternal aunt, Prasannamayi Dasi. For 
three years prior to 1886, he had a tame deer bf the species 
known as swamp deer, which was firs! brought when very 
young and always believed to be Quite harmless. The deer 
used to be kept within a bamboo enclosure six feet high &Od 

• a servant was specially appointed to look after, and .Ilttend 't'O 

it. On the morning of the 6th September at a.bout 7 o'clock'; 
Mr. S-h, who was Assistant Superintendent or P6J,ice at 
Rungpore, was informed by a man named Ainddin, who had 
been in the service of a gentleman who was staying with Mr. 
S-h, that the deer had got loose. Mr. S-h thereupon took 
his rifle and went to the house of the zemindar, Annada 
Prasad Sen, and found that the zemindar was not then in the 
district. According to the evidence of the men present in • 
the house, Mr. S-h sent for the zemindar's Dewan, Pyan 
Mohun Bose, and told him that his master had twice deceived 
him: (once he had refused to lend his elephant after, having 
promised to do so, and on another occasion had insulted him 
in connexion with a procession), and said that he wOl\ld see 
the zemindar punished. While Mr. S-h was speaking to the 
Dewan the servants of the house were trying to drive the deer 
into the enclosure, but did not succeed in doing so. Ther~­
upon Mr. S-h shot the animal dead within a few yards from 
where he was standing. A pleader of the High Court who' 
happened to come to the house was instructed immediately by, 
the Dewan to inform Mr. S-h that he had needlessly shot ~ 
deer and that proceedings would be instituted against him on 
behalf of the zemindar for his having done so. Immediately 
afterwards the Dewan sent the dead animal in charat~f 
,some servants to Mr. N., the District Magistrate, in order~t 
he migpt have an opportunity of seeing that it had ~botna;l 

lna that he might also be informed of what had bie~ji~. 



by the Assistant Superintendent of Police. Mr. N., instead~' 
listening to th, Cdnlplaint, got enraged at the sight.of the deer. 
ordered the carcasS to be t;emo~ed instantly from his house 
and declined- to listen to any complaint against the Assista~t 
Superintendent of Police. Later in the day Mr. S ....... O sent for 
Ainuddin and insisted upon his preferring a complaint at the 
Police Station against the Dewan, Pyari Mohun Bose, and this 
ma.n accordingly at 2 P. M. on the same day, under orders 
from Mr. S-h, preferred a charge under section 289 of the 
Penal Code for the offence of neglecting to tak~ care of a 
dangerous animal in his possession. Mr. S-h having secured 
the support of the District Superintendent of Police Mr. 5., 
and of the District Magistrate Mr. N., caused his subordinate 
police officers to send up the charge as a true one to the 
court of Babu Chandi Charan Bose, a Deputy Magistrate. 
The case against the Dewan was accordingly heard on the 8th 
and 9th September, and all the witnesses cited by the police 
were duly examined. Mr. S-h volunteered to give evidence 
as .an important witness but was not fully or properly rross­
examined by the accused, the Deputy Magistrate having inti­
mated that such cross-examination was unnecessary as no 
case had been established on behalf of the prosecution. 
The result of the trial was that the Dewan, Pyari Mohun 
Bose, was acquitted without being called upon fot his defence, 
but unfortunately the Deputy Magistrate expressed no opini­
on upon the question as to whether the evidence adduced by 
the police regarding the vicious propensities of the animal 
w~s true or false. This decision of the Deputy Magistrate, 
however, was very distasteful to Mr. S-h who, after a private 
consultation with the District Superintendent of Police, and 
the District Magistrate decided to prosecute the aunt of Babu 
Annada Prasad Sen, the zemindar, as she was, in the Zemin­
dar's absence, the head of the family. The Sub-Inspector of 
~ce was set up as a formal complainant and he applied on 
th~ 15th September 1886, for a summons against the lady. 
The Deputy Ma.gistrate at first was -reluctant to if>sue ,an'y 
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summons, but instead of taking upon himself the respon~ib~/ 
11ty of refusing the summons t!wught it saf-er fG-r himself pri­
fttely to 'Consult Mr. N., the District Magistrate, under who.,' 
advice, five days after, the Deputy Magistrate, decided to 
summon the lady to answer a charge'under section 289. The 
case accordingly came on for hearing before the same Deputy 
Magistrate on the 14th October, when Counsel from Cal~utta 
was engaged at considerable expense, to defend the lady, 
What happened at the commencement of this trial will be 
found in tlte following report as taken from the Statesman 
newspaper of 19th October, 1886:-

On the Magistrate taking his soat, Mr. Ghose addressing his worship, 
laid :-1 appear. Sir, on betoalf of the lady, Prasannamayi Dasl, and b«QtIoI 
the case is proceeded with, I believe you will agree with me in thinking that 
it is bllt fair to the accused that she should know the circumstances Under 
whioh the prosecution again~t her originated, as there is nothing disclosed at 
present on the record. I have been informed, Sjr-and you will oorrect me 
if my information il; wrong-that after the case against Pyari Mohun Bose 
had concluded, that is, aittlr he had been acquitted, an applioation was made 
to youJor a summons against the lady; that you at first disapproved, ot the 
proceeding, and recorded your disapproval, but that afLerwards, afcer a lapse 
of five days, you granted the application. I should therefore like to know, 
Sir, if what I state is correct, under what Circumstances the summons W68 

subsequen~ly ordered to issuo against the lady, and whether 1I.nythiq 
transpired in the interval to induce you to changc your mind. 

The Magistrate-Yes, first let me talte e\·jdeace in the oase, and I shall 
then let you know the circumstances under whidl I granted the application. 

Mr. Ghose-But surely, Sir, that would be at a very late stage. Illee 
that a letter or petition was presented to you Oll the 16th September, and 
that it was not till the 21st September, thlit you were pleusedio direct. 
summons to issue against my client. What I would like to kn9w is, wq" 
there was this delay in grnnting the application, and the oiroumiltal10eB 
which led to the issue of the summOIl8, as it is very important I should know 
them at the beginning. 

The Magistrate-loan only say this, that I oon!ulted ih8 Magistrate­
there is no harm in my t$king his opinion-whether it would be proPfl' ~ . 
me to sUII1JJ1on Pra.sa.nnamayi, and in aocordance wtth his opinian I lata_t 
lIJurnmoIllJ. 

JIll'. Gbose-Then am I rightly informed, Sir. that when th •• pplio&~; 
was lirslellresenk3d to you, YOlt declined io issue ~he IUnl1nOD8, but.-.*,,',. 
eer:11flKl it at the 8uggolstion of the Magistrate' " " " 
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'The Magiatrate-What paued between me aRd ·the Mqilink. ill 

private, and I don't think you have any right to know it. 
1I1!. Gh08e-There can be nothing private in a j udicial proceedi~. I 

'am elltitled to know who my prosecutor is, as the law require8' that"· tke 
eomplainant should be examined, and no oomplainant hall yet j>een 
examined . 

. The Magistrate (pointing to the witness Ainuddin)-He is the oom­
plainant. 

Mr. Ghose~No, Sir, he is not. and has never been the complainant. He 
never preferred any charge against the lady before the police at any time. 
The application against the lady was made by Kasi Mohun Sen, Court Sub­
Inspector, and as he applied for the summons, I should like to begin by 
examining him, he being the comphtinant. 

~ The Magistrate directed K<l.si Mohun Sen to be caUed, but was informed 
tha* Kasi Mohun had taken a week's leave and left Rungpore. 

,,' Mr. Ghose-Thi;. is extraordinary, esveuially as the first thing to be 
dune is to find out who is the proseeutoT, and to examine him. 

The Magistrate-You can ask the District Superintendent who appears 
8S prosecutor. 

Baboo Nil Kamal Banerjee (another Court Sub-Inspector) said he was 
instruoted to appear as prosecutor. 

Mr. Ghose-He is not the compla inant. 
The Magistrate-He may appear as public prosecutor. 
Mr, Ghose-I have a right in law to examine this man Kasi Mohun 

Sen, on whose written complaint prOCfl~S has been issued. As you know, 
Sir, a mltgistrate oan take cognisan ce of a case only in one of three 
ways :-1. On a complaint. 2. On a polioe report, as defined by the Code. 
3. On suspicion, or personal knowledge. So far as I can see, ihis case 
originated on a complaint, there bOlllg no A form or police report a.gainst the 
la.dy. Ka~i Mohun Sen is the complsmant, and he is not here. 

The Magistrate-He is a complainant in hiS public capacity. 
Mr. Ghose-There is no such a thing as oomplainant in a publio 

~paoity. He is either the oomplainant or he is not. 
The Magistrate-But his letter may be called a police report. 
Mr, Ghose-There is no police report, but a letter. or petHion, or 

whatever else it might be called, upon which the sanction for summons was 
given. It is, as I am sure you will a.now, Sir, of the utmost importance to 
me, that I should know who my proseoutor is. I Bee in the original list of 
witnesses sent by the Police that Mr. 8-h's name is mentioned. He W88 

considered 1\ very importani witness in the case against Pyari Mohun Bose, 
and was examined on that oOl'asion. I should like to know if he will be 
examined to-day in this oase, 

The Magistrate-His name appears in form A. (To the Court I~~ 
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*01,. Aft"U g~ to examine Mr. S-h' You oo.ght to be abloto A)' 

10 at Olloe. 
B~u Nil Kam:11 Banerjse-I am not aoquainted wit;h the faots of the 

ease~ and leav~ the matter to the Court. 
'l'~ Ma,gistrate-Kasi Mohun Sen, the Oourt Sub-Inspeot;or, wbo 

applied for the summons in this oase is not here. 
M'!". Ghose--Whoever is pulling the striags should, in justice to' all 

oonoerned, appear and take the responsibility of the proseoution. The law 
says the oomplainant should bo eX:.Imined. Ainuddm, the oomplainant in 
the other oase before the police, never mentionod tho same of this lady, and 
as the summons ill thiA case was iH8ued on the applicu tion of Kusi Mohun 
Sen, I should lik" to oxamine him, but, as you see, Sir, he does not appear. 

The Magistra.te-This is a pohca prosecution, and the polioo have 
brought these men (reade 1i8t of witnessoR) 

Mr GI1(>~"'-YOll issued tho summons, Sir, not 01\ allY' p?lioe report, for 
there is none. but on a letter or petition of Kasi Mohun Son. HMreVtlr, I 
do not object to the witnesd Ainuddin, bein,\, C1Gt'lIinod nolV, but the person 
on whose petition aotion was taken, must also bo examined. If, however, 
Mr. S-h is going to be eXllminod, I will sh,)w that he is tho real complain­
ant, and I shall be glad to gh'e up Kagi Mohlln. The sooner it iM under­
stood tha.t a criminal pros(lcur.ion of this sDrt is a seriolls matter, Bnd 
should nit be lightly undortaken, the botter for all oonnorned. I oonfess I 
am not a little nurprigpd at tho he.litation d,~playod to call Mr. S-h, the 
ppreon who ki1led the doer, and who is t,11e prime mover in this case_ 

The Magistrate (to hi.. clerk)-Lot IU(l sell the list of witne~ses, Bnd see 
how many persons they are glling to call. 

(The ~l:J.giRtrate here ontercd into a short conversation with Babu Nil 
Kamal Banerjee, who afterwards went out to consult Mr. S-h for several 
minutes.) 

Mr. Gbose-We are losing very valuable time, Sir. The polioe should 
have known wha.t course they intended to adopt. This iI:I scaroely the time 
for oonsultation. 

Babu Nil Kamal Banerjee, Inspeotor, on his return, intimated that i~ 

had been decided not to call Mr. S-h as a witness, and handed to the 
Court a. fresh list of witnesses. 

The Magistrate then re!!.d out the the names of the witnes8IIs. 

Mr. GhOfle-Then I unierstand, 8ir, that Mr. 8-h, who reptllllent. *h. 
polioe, who killed ille deer, and who wae II. m lit important witne.. fa the 
cae against Pyari llohull Bose, dCJeI Il')t venture to coma f01'W'ard in tIWI. 
PTotBOlltion. 

The Magistrate-His name il IlGt in the li.t of witn ..... JIQ'W· 

~11d_ to z3 •. 
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'lit. Ghoee-Then, Sir. it wiU be my duty to present to you oertai,n 
~titiona. As I am anxious, on behalf of my client, that this case should_' 
disposed of at once, and as Mr. N., the District Magistrate, will, I heat, 
bs leaving the station to-day, the first petition I have to pressat is this ~....! 

To the De"puty Magistrate of Rungpore. 
. The humble petition of Srimati" Praeannamayi 

Dasi of Rungpore. 
Humbly Shpwcth-

(1). That your petitioner i~ at present being prosecuted under section 
289 of the lnd Ian Pt·naI Code, on a complaint ostensibly brought by one 
K!1Bi Mohun Sell, Court Sub-Inspector. 

(2) That your petitioner Rubmits that the prosecution is not only 
without any reasonable and probable cause, but absolutuly malicious and 
mala fide. 

(3). That in Mder to ~ubRt.antiat" tlw defence of your petitioner, it 
would be mOBt matorial tv examine Nr. J H. N-., the DiRtrkt Magistrate 
of Rungporl', who, y()ur petitioner iR advi~t'd and believes, will be able 
to give very material oVJ(!f'llee be-,Hm!; upon the circuml..;tances which 
have It·d to the pr"s"l'u!,ioll. 

(4) Tlwt 1l!, tho said Mr N, is at Hl1l1gpore to-day, but is about to leave 
the stl1tion, and as yllllr jletlti"llcr cannot Without RU'llnlOnS secure his at­
tendfUlce, Hhe prl1yB tlla t Ill' he rcqnc,t".r llr summoned to appear in Court, 
and give ovi,\"ueo III Cuurt to.day, <iud, further, that he be called upon to 
prodLll'~ tho following docunl"n\~ in Cullrt :-

(a) AllletterM, (' )rrospolldellce, l'rooBodings, reports, lOIId momoranda 
whi(lh have pusBod between the ~aid Mr, N, and yuur w()r~hip (written by 
(lithor) r(lgardlilK tho case of A.1I1\~d'ltn 1',;. Pyari Mohull Bose, or thi,l! case, 
het,wIlcn tho 6th Soptember and the 21st September, both dates inclusive. 

Your plltitioner i~ Willing to depOSit at once any .'ITI'lunt w~ch the 
Court l,oll~iders reasonabLe for the [\ttendanec of the s.lid Mr. N. 

And your pllTit.iollflr u~ in dut.y bound 8h,,11 ever pray. 

KALLlDHAN MO:)KERJEE, 

Vakil, 
DArED RUNGrORE, 14TH OCTOBER, IB86. 

Mr. Ohose (continlllUgj-This, I lrl:lY say, I shall only ask for, if yllu 
think: th& t Ii sufficient case has been made (lllt agalll~t me to put me on my 
d(;lfenoe. The second petition which I have to present is to the following 
offoot :-

To the Di'puty MugisU'ate of Rungpore. 

Humbly Shtlweth­

The humble petition of Srimati Prasannamayi 
Dasi of Rungpore. 

That in the case under section 289, Indian Penal Code, ill whioh JQ1lf 

petitioner is tit pre8tlnt being pros9Cuied, Mr. E. A.8-hill a V917 imPPl-
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'ta~ witness for the prOBeClution, and a9 such. he .... 8.1 uam~d, ~,.; 
Qoun'in the ease against Pyari Moh1l1l Bose. 

~ No rea~ has been assigned why Mr. S-h who killed the deer, has 
n,pt b~en dted by the prosecution; and as it is very imponant for yOur' 
petitioner to show that the Pl'Ilsent proseoution is niaJioious and mala .lid", 
and a9 Mr. S-h:s evidence would be very important on this point, your 
petitioner prays that he be summoned to give his evidt't\ce in Court'to-day, 
your pe~itioner being prepared to deposit any amount whioh the Court 
thinks reusonable for his [~ttend.1nct'. 

And your petitioner as ill duty bound. &~. 
Mr. Gllose.1 lllll info.med th" t Mr. l::l--b 1>1 within the preoinots of this 

buildmg. 
The Ma«iil\rato-Ye~, let the witnC'«~e~ for the prosecution be tirat 

e); .. ullnlsd. then I will cn1\~id(>r auuut Mr. 8---11. 

Mr. G~lOso-I ~,IV. Sir. that M~. S -11 is a mo~t ll11ror~allt witness in 
thi~ Cd ie. He was Lho j1t'J"AiJll who killod tho cillor (laughter) ; he was the 
Pol we officer mOSG (',"!leaded in the case, and wa.~ examined by you in the 
oa~() a~ain!lt Pyari Mohun. If he is ,minMtl,d hy proper motives, how is it 
that though he camo forward a~ a wi~nos" in tll(J last ca~e, he now refu808-
that IS tho interprt'tation J am reluc~antly forcod to put upon his conduct­
-to come into the witnes,-box. 

Tl~ Magi.strate-With regard to Mr. N., ] may toll you that he will he 
going a way on lea vo to-day. 

Tho Magiijtr,tte-With Ng,ud to Mr. N., I mllY tell you that he will be 
going aw.ty on le:\ve to-chy. 

Yr. Ghos<'-It mllY be that after examining Mr. 8-h and gotting the 
a nswers which I expect to get from him, it will not be necessary for me to 
exa.mine Mr. N. 

The Magistrate-Yes. you may depend that Mr. S-h will be sum­
moned, and on the understandjn~ that he will be eX!LInined later, we may 
proceed with the examination of other witnesses. 

An immediate summons was then ordered to be servlXi on Mr. S-h, 
Mr. Ghose undertaking to inform the Court in time should be require Mr. N. 

>, • 

The trial then proceeded and the witnesses were examin;. 
ed, and cross-examined, and it was shown clearly that the 
whole prosecution had its origin in Mr. S-h who was the real > 
prosecutor behind the scenes. As soon as the witnesses were 
cross-examined and the statement of the lady who was allow .. ', 
cd to appear through Counsel, was taken, her Coun4llel app1i~~: 
that M,. S-h should be the first witness called for the, 
Unce. especially as the defence had produced, certa:f,~' 



letters ftorn Mr. S-h to the Ze'tnindar, showing tho.t tb'e · 
latter had incurred Mr. S-h's displeasure by his refusal to 
lend his elephant. The Magistrate thereu~ said "There rt 
no necessity for you to go into the defence. I acquit-Prasan­
namayi Dasi." The lady was put to very great expense by 
reason of this prosecution and after the publication of the 
proceeding!' in the newspapers of Calcutta, the Lieutenant­
Governor of Bengal (Sir Rivers Thomp!'on) reviewed the 
case in a Resolution datt'd 1st March 1887, from which the 
following extracts are taken :-

•••• It is no doubt pos~ible that Mr. S - h originally went to ille 
.pot nnd with a rifle, in consequence of the exaggerated account given to 
him hy hi~ infvlIlIants. Bu~ his proceedings after his dispute with the 
Dewan were entirely uncalled for, and it iH quite clear that he should have 
reiirtld from the scene when I." fuund that tile reports regardmg the animal 
were extravagantly wide of the truth, and that the servants of the Babu 
were in 11 position ~o Hecure it 

5. The proceedings in the next stage were more serious. It appears 
that Mr. S-h ut onoe roported the circumstances to his superior officer, 
the District RupNintendent, Mr. S., and that the result of their ctnference 
was that Mr. S - h sent a constable for the man Ainuddin who bad original­
ly reported to him thut tbe doer was doing miscluef and told him, that, ali 
injury had becn dOlle to blm he should c.omplaiu. Without such instigation, 
there is no rtlilson to "lIppo~e that the llIan would have moved in the matter. 
ThereUpon, A.inuddin laid IJ. charge at the Police Station against the :Dewan, 
pyar. Mohun Basu, and tbe police Nent the case up for trial. It appears 
that the matter also came to the noti(le of Mr. N., the Magistrate and Col­
lector of the District, and that he was cor,nlzant of these proceedings and 
approved of the "dioll of the District and AsSIstant SUperintendents. The 
question for the Lieutenant-Governor to consider is whether Mr. S. and 
Mr. S-h Ilcted in good faith, in causing this prosecution to be instituted. 

Thoy boih argue that the fact that some people wont to Mr. 8-h and asked 
biro to take measures to haye an Ilnimal whioh was loose and doing nUl­
ehief tied up oonstituted the laying of a oharge under section 289 of ihe 
Indilln Penal Code before a Police Officer. and that the Police were bouod 
*0 p!'ooeed witb the charge. This explanation does little credit ~ those by 
whom it is a.dvanced. All the prooeedi1lgll show thai ilie prosecutiOIl WAI 

a polioe pror.ooution, and tbe polioe Iluthorities should not have PUt tor­
ward a OOl!\plaiut or to endeavour to invest it with any oilier appearau.oe. 
lIr. s-h him!elf in hil evidence on oaili aaid-" I then told 4he ~ .. 
~a~ 1 Bbould proeecu~. him {or Dot taking proper care of a aa f"ap ~1 



'kaMa oha~." But ,U'lil' qwltt'l evident ihat the oiroumstance., did!' aff, 
ju5ify a police proaecu)ion. The animal Wall not shewn to have bMu dd-' 
';el'Oua and the, eve~ of ihe night on which it got loose were not aufticierrt 
to mau ita oWner o~ Keeper criminally liable beoauae it. succseded in 
flSC~ from .~~e enol08ure. Moreover the animal was then dllad, and 
Ailluddin or any of the other perSOllB Who hAd been frightened shOUld Del'" 
tainly have been left to their own remedy. Looking to all the oircum. 
stances, the Lieutenant-Governor must hold that Mr. S. and Mr. S-h wert> 
actuated by other motives than those of public duty in proceoeding with 
the case. Whe~er these motives wtlre on Mr. S-h's part, irritation at 
the action or words of Babu Annadu Prasad Sen or his adherents. or at the 
threat of a ch'U-action, or on Mr S's part, a desire to support hi. subor­
dinate cannot be determined. But that a polico prosecution was instituted 
for some other objects than the prosecution of the publio interests, il the 
only inferenoe to be drawn from the facts. Mr. N. appears at least paa.ive­
Iy to havtI acquiesced in this abuse of official power. 

6. In the course of the trial before the Deputy Magistrate. Babu 
Chandi Cham Bose, no proof was adduced of habitual fierceness or danger. 
ous character of the deer. The complainant stated generally that it Was 
in the habit of injuring people. but no witnl.'ss supported this statement 
and one directly denied It. The Dewan admitted that on one ocoasion 
when iV keeper had put his arms round the animal'H neck it had shaken 
him off, and in doing so hurt him with its hornR, and that its horn had 
been out down in consequence. The statement was Bupported by the 
production of the animal's head in court. This fact itllelf showed that 
measures had been taken to prtlvent the animal from doing harm. At any 
rate the case for the prosecution entirely failed. Yet, the Deputy Magill. 
trate instead of direotly finding this. dismiRsed the case on the ground 
that the Dewan was' not the person in oharge of the deer. This error ot 
judgment laid the basis for the lmfortunate proceedings which followed. 

7. On its coming to Mr. S's. knowledge that the case had been dismi.· 
sed on this ground. he directed the Court Sub-Inspector to apply for a 
eummons against Babu Annada Prasad San'! aunt Brim"tl Prasannam&yi. 
Thil 19'11.1 a aerious aggravation of the previous impropriety of prening the 
proeecution at all. and it brings into strong relief the action of MelliN S. 
and 8-h in instigating Alnuddin to lay his formal complaint In the Bret 
{utRce. It indicates a reckless determination to caUle troubl. IICd 
"'nnoyance to thoae against whom the police had once direoted $hell' e_~ 
aon., The Deputy Magistrate instead of peremptorily re!ulingto J",,_ 
.~ refened the case to Mr. N., giying his r8880ns for thiDkina' iJut,~;' 
IwmnOlUi should not be _ued. Thereupon Mr. N, reoordedt~ f~: 

order ADIUoniQsi1le illtue of lummon.. It I. probable, a. )"OU o~ 
. da. \e DeVU I_eel at the reeord, but in anyoue it is 01. .. u.t, ~\ 

• " ,,!.' 
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~'!1joly fq,fi"a in his duty as ohlef controijing l\u~hority ~nd exeoutl, .. " 
head 6f tho dilltrict. The deer, whioh ,was the cau'l,s of the olfellce, was 
dead; the'first proseoution had failed, and an officer in ,his position J{th 
.1IY claim to wdgment, would have been glad of the 6PPbrt~nity ofstayirt'1;, 
f~ther proceedings, That he should encourage ~e cont!nu~nci ot the' 
sca:!idal by allowing action to be taken. against a lady. and thus, in'stead of 
suppressing it, giving it the sanction and support of his' a~ority mak13. 
it manifeAt that he is wanting in ordmury discretion. ' 

8. The second prosecutiQn as might have been expeC£~d failed like the 
first. One incident oCllurred, however, in the course of it, which gave Messrs' 
S. and 8-h a further opportunity of showing their inability to realise their 
responsibility to the public and to the Government. Mr: 8--h who had 
appeared as a witnoss for the prosecution in the first oase, was not put 
forward ~8 a witne~s in the second. The reasons given for this are, as you 
l"£vtl ~hown, quito futile. Mr. S--h was clted as a witness for the defence' 
and it was then made evident that the COIlIl~el for the defence wished to 
have fill opportuni/'y of examining him. \Vh"'l it was found that the case 
would he di~missed wiLill.ut any witnl'ss for the defence heing called, an 
attempt was made to induc~ Mr. S. to l\llow him to "pvear as a witness for 
the prosecution, in order that he IDlght he ufosR-examined. Mr. S. refused 
to do so, and the Deputy Magistrate did not exerdse hi3 power of calling 
him as a witll~s8, and Mr 8··-h d,d not offer hlmself. Mr. 8.'s exp~nations 
on this as on other points, show an inahility to real,se the positlOn of a police 
officer in the mattf'r. It waH not a matter of .. the fighting out of personal 
illliUIi between Mr. S-·h, and Ba.bu Munomohan Ghose." It was a matter 
of clea.ring Mr. 8-h. and through h1111 Mr. S. himself, of anim!i.s in 
instituting or promotinll: tlHl prolJeeution. If no suuh clIIimU8 existed, the 
police officers should have b<>en rca,ly to take the opportunity of disprov­
ing it. That they d,)()linl'll the opportuDlty. aff(lI'lb' tho strongest ground 
for assuming that they fearpd th", result of the ordell 1. Without rejecting 
Mr. 8---11'8 !ltatl'11leat as regards the altf'rcalion between him and the Babu's 
adherents, the LltlUttlnant-Gm'ernor must hold that there was something 
in those prul'f'edings or in the antecedent or subsequent proceedings which 
he wus unwilling to subjElct to public scrutiny 

9. The whole case exhibits a course of arbitrary and oppressive action 
on the part of Messrs. 8-h, S. and N" which the Government canll()t 
\olerate. Such proceedings can only bring the administration into oontempt 
and di1repute and enhance the difficulties of officers who are really anxioU.!l 
to administer their charges with fairness, Babu Chandi Chum Bose dis­
played a wanl. of judicial accuraoy in the first case and of judioial firmnet13 
in the second; but beyond this, his conduct does not call for unfavon.ble, 
comment. Mr. 8-h has already been transferred <&0 the SJhittacoR8 
Rill Tracts. He is Itn officer of only a year's standing and was annul il a 



,~ part of thei. ~itlga in eo ~lne.w ~iioa. ,'~~ .';&.~~ 
sTaal! Asl'isant SupeJ'i~tendadt., officia.ting in th. 2~d gI:l.\de. ~1I~ , 'rar·~ 
deWived of his oftioiattnr PrQl'notion ,tor six months, and til. CommisSfonllillo 
~ofv.cl~tagong in. cf(lm~lli!lfting to him an upr~!Jt,on of the stroq dia­
Pleasllre of Governmen\~i\l inform him that' his l'$stor!l.tion -to prol'notion 
will be ~penden' on the" nature of the reports received from his Department­
al 8uperiol8. Mr. S. has already been deprived of his officiating ohar,. as 
Distrlct.Superi~te'ndent, .tnd tmnsferred to another Dis'trict in the oa1)aeity 
of Asslstant Superintendent. The Inspector-General will convey to him the 
severe censure of Governmont, and inform him th .. t he will not be appointed 
to the charge of a district for at least one year, and until he is reported 
to have shown ~ better appreciation of his dilLy and responllibilitil!s, Mr. 
N. has applied to resign the serVICe, but hEwing regllrd to the Plut he tool!: 
in the case, and considering that It W'~9 to him ali the chiof ollieer of the 
District, that Government had to look for the rAlJreSSlOn of the irregularities 
of his subordinates. the LJcutenullt-GJveruor is consirainod to mark his dis­
satisfaction by dJrecting tbdt from tho 1st March, Mr. N, shull ba reduoed to 
the 2nd grade of Magi~tmt"s and Colkctors. 

It will be seen that the DC'J)uty M,lgistrate was compelled 
to issue a summons in the case in o,'der to please his official 
superior Mr. N., the District l'.bgistrate, whose conduct in the 
case ~ so severely censured oy the Lieutenant-Governor. 
Had the Deputy Magistrate bcen left freC' to t!xercise his 
own judgment such a scancLd as tbis would never have taken 
place. But the B..:ngal Civil St.:rvice according to its leadlnif 
organ the Piof!rL'r, considered that Mr. N. was very severely 
dealt with by tbe Lieutenant-Governor and that paper re­
marked that nine out of ten members of the Civil Service 
would consider themselves "very harshly treated" if they 
were called to account in the same way for doing what Mr. 
N. had done! 

CASE NO. 15 

The Jamalpur Meta Case-IS8,. 
Jamalpur is a sub-divisional town in the distJict p( 

Mymensingh. In 1883 Mr. Nanda Krishna Bose was in. 
magisterial charge (executive and judicial) of the $ub­
dbrision of JaQlalpur, and in that year a public meetingO.f', 
tWo 'inhabitants t}f the place was held, in which it .,tl 
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~e~lved "that a Mela (exhibition or faft') should be hd14.f 
annually in the town for the e~couragement of trade and 
a;riculture and that it should begin in February or ~arch 
and last for,about a month and a half, anti that- the e:lfPtnses 
should be defrayed by public subscription. The fir~t Mela 
,or exhibition was held after raising the necessary funds, on a 
piece of land belonging to thc Government called Line 
Jamalpur, which was placed at the disposal of the Meta Com­
mittee by the Sub-divisional Officer, with the consent of 
Mr. R. M. Waller, then M:lgistrate' and Collector of Mymen-

ft 

singh. The Mela continued to be held similarly in 1884 and 
1885, the surplus proceeds from the public subscription and 
the pn)fits being deposited in the Postal Savings Bank, in 
the name of the President of the Committee, who during 
those years was Mr. Nal1<la Krishna Bose. Ea.rly in 1886 he 
was transferred from J:iIlnlpur and was succeeded by Babu 
S. C. D. a Deputy Magistrate who, shortly after his arrivi-l, 
was elected as Chdirm1n of the ,~!.:Ia Committee and the 
exhibition for 1886 was held as before. About Apri~, 1886, 
certain letters passed between B.lbu S. C. D. and his official 
superior Mr. G., then Magistrate and Collector of Mymen­
singh, as to the desir;Jbility of making over the Mcla and its 
funds to the Govl'rnnH'llt. The members of the M!'la Com­
mittee apparently disapprov~d of this suggestion to deprive 
the public of th<; management of the Mela, and represented 
the matter by letter to Mr. Nanda Knshna Bose, the founder, 
who was then in another district. Mr. Nanda Krishna Bose's 
reply was to this e.ffect :-" You should remember that the 
Mcla is a public institution, and not Government property. 
There is a committee of management and you have every 
right to protest against the diversion of the funds to Gov­
ernment." It had been customary on the opening of the 
~la every year for the Hindus to worship an image of the 
80ddess Kali which used to be kept in a thatched house 
within the Mela grounds. In November 1886, Mr. G., Magis­
trate of the District, visited Jamalpur and directetlhis sQbQ.r~ 



din~~e:UldIO 'S.c. p .• by an nrdar, in writirtg, that ~M. l~ 
of the goddess Kali should b~ removed {rom the Me/a gr()Urid' 
within six hours, and the goddess was accordingly throwfi 
away.::"by cooues,~ a proceeding which naturally gave 
offence" to the' Hindu community. On Jhe 28th' N'1vembet 
1886, the inhlbitants of ]amalpur held a p:tblic meeting and 
resolved that a g,;nc-ral meetil<lg should be convened at 
an early date for the purpose of making arrangements for 
the Mella of the following year, and for the purpose of obtain­
ing from the Governmentilla lea::.e of the Md..l ground. A 
letter W:lS accordingly ad.lr<3ssed by the chairnnn of the 
meeting to B:lbu S. C. D., containing the substance of the 
resolution, to which Babu S. C. D. replied that he would 
convene a meeting, as requested, at an carly lLlte. Instead 
of doing so however, B.lbu S. C. D. without consulting the 
committee bcgJ.n m:lking arr,wgements for holding the Mcla 
i~depel1(10ntly of the committee, Whl.!rCllpon another public 
m;!etin~ of the inh.tbitants W.1S held on the 19th DJCember, 
at which it was rl.!solvcd that .t Idter be addressed to Babu 
S. C. D. requl.!stin~J; him to dolsist from spcndin/4 the money 
of the M.'la fund and from disposing of the furniture and 
other move:tble property belonging to the committee without 
their s.::mction. This rcsolation was also daly communicated 
to B..ibu S. C. D. 0:1 the 25th D.:cember 1837, a further 
lD0eting Jf the Mda Committee was held at which it was 
resolved that B:.tbu S. C. D., having failed to convene a 
public meeting', and by re:lson of his time being almost 
entirely taken up by official duties a non~official and Hono­
rarY,Magistrate should be appointed president of the Mtla 
committee, and that he should take over all the properties 
belonging to the Mila from Babu S. C. D. It . was further 
resolved that in aSlU.lch as Mr. G., the Magistrate and Col ... ,­
lector was opposed to any religious worship or amuseme-._ 
of &ny kind being held on G-)vernment land, it would be 
desirable to hold the M:!la on some other site not belongfrici, 
t() tile Gi!ernment. The substance of this resolution havinj{ 



been communicated to Babu S. C. D. by the newly elected' 
president, Babu S. C. D. by way of reply forwarded a copy 
of the following letter from the Magistrate and CollectPz':"":' 
'. "1'0 the Sub-Divisional Officer, Jamalpur. ' ,. 
""Your No. 193. dated 28th Deeombe~ 1886. You wilLma1re nothing 

"over to anyone else; the regulation of the Mela is to remain in your hands 
.. 1'-8 Sub-Divisional Offioer, lls~isted by the Committee. 

lat January. 1887. (Sd.) E. G.,- Magi.strate and Collector." 

A general meeting of the inhabitants of Jamalpur was 
again held in February 1887, and. it was resolved by those 
pr~sent that in consideration of the approaching Jubilee of 
Her Majesty the Queen-Empress, the Mcla should be opened 
on the 16th F d,JTllary, the d~te fixed for the celebration of 
the Jubilee, and that out of the proceeds of the Mcla 
a school should be established to be called the Jubilee 
Vernacular School. In accordance with this resolution a 
public subsrription was raisell by the Committee, ;>nd it was 
announced that the AIda would be opened on this occasion 
at a place called Khatiakury in Jnmalpur, on the 16th 
Fehruary. Traders and ~h()pkeepers accordingly comrhenced 
to arrivc from tile interior from ahollt the 13th February 1887, 
with v.lriolls kinds of goods, and to occupy stalls which had 
been built for them by the Committee. On the I4th February, 
B:tbu S. C. D., who expected to be snpported by the District 
Magistr:1tc, accornp:ll1ied by a Sllb-In:>pcC'tor of Police and 
about 20 constables and 8 or 10 ch:wkidars or rural watch­
men, suddenly appeared \\iithout any complaint or infonna­
tion of any kind 011 the J/,/<l ground, and ordered the 
Polico to examine the weights of the shop-keepers. Where­
ltpon several persons apprehending ill-treatment ran 'I1'*ay j 

three of them who stayed there were arrested by the Police, 
but subsequently released and their weights taken from them. 
Babu S. C. D. intimated that orders would be passed regard­
i1'l.g them hereafter. On the 15th February several Police 
con<;tablos again came to the "lIcla ground and commenced 
to dissuade the shop-keepers and others from attending the 
Aida. About that time Babu S. C.D further i'nstitute{j 



proceedings ag::linst several of the supporters of the .ttela~ 
the )lurpose of ~inding them down to keep the PeaCe., 9\lt 
afterwards took no further steps in the matter. 

"I'he Mela. iii spite of the opposition of the 'M.lgistrates 
and the Police, was however opened on the 16th February arr 
announced, and about the same time Babu S. C. D. himself 
gave Ol:1t that he would open another Mda at Line Jamalpur. 
on 9th March. The Police during this period were instru­
menta 1 in harassi ng the snp.porters of the public Jf'ela opened 
on the 16th p\:br,ury in v.trious ways, and certain compl!!ints 
of ill-tre:ltment and wrongful confinement were brought 
agaio,-;t the Police by ~OlUl~ of the shop-keepers who had come 
t,) the .11:111, while on the olher hand, the Police preferred 
certain charge;; :11.:('ai·lst the .1I,'/a people, atcusing them of 
havin~ furcibly compe!kJ trJ.ders to go to their .l-/ela. RlbYi 
S. C. D. in his jtHiiciJ.l capa,~ity acccpted all the complalQ_ 
by the Police anel i>et them down for hearing, while he was, 
reluctant to take any action on the complaints brought by the 
shop-Iteepers. On the 22nd February, the Sub-Inspector o'f 
Police reported to Babu S. C. D. through the Inspector that a 
constable under him had been ob~tructed in the discharge of 
his duties on the previous clay by two of the men who had 
preferred charg('s agai nst the Police. On this report Babu 
S. C. D. passe(l the following order: "Police to send up 
rioters under section 353 Penal Code," and in accordance with 
this order sent up two of the complainants against them 
on a charge under that section. On the 25th February, Ii 

further complaint was made by a Head-Constable of Police" 
at· tbe Police Station charging the Vice-Chairman of t8e 
Municipality, one of the principal supporters of the Mela, wit~ 
having been a member of an unlawful assembly in his own: 
house with the intention of beating the Police, but that ~' 
unlawful assembly were unable to carry out their intenddtlt' 
in as much as the constable had taken shelter in the Po1i~fj 
Station. While, these charges and counter-charges were being; 
.... elerati, 1bbu S. C. D. instead of waiting till the 9th M4~~: 
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suddenly 9pencd his Mela at Line Jamalpur jlbout 'the end of . 
Fomuaty and attempted, with the assistance of the Police, to 
tndu£e tr~~rs and shop-keepers to stay away from the public 
1lIIlaand to attend his own. Early in March st:veral of the 
eomplainants· and accused persons connected with the public 
Mela applied to the M:Jgistrllte of the District to transfe&' all 
the cases then pending before B3bu S. C. D. to some other 
Magistrate, on the grounu that Babu S. C. D. was personally 
interested in their result. Mr. G. felt bound to accede 10 this 
prayer amI he transft:rrecl all the cases then pei\ding "to the 
Court of another subordinate of his-a Deputy Magistrate, 
Babu A. K R in the town of Maimensingh. However, the 
day before the order of the District Magistrate to transfer the 
cases, reached Balm S. C. D., he himself instituted certain 
cases against some of the men and charged the mukhtear 
or legal practitioner, who had objected to his trying the cases, 
with perjury in having made, as he alleged, a false statement 
in a petition filed by him on behalf of some of the supporters 
of the public Me/a. After the transfer of the cases to th~ Court 
of Babll A. K. B. he, before he had been spoken to by the 
District 1\hgistrate, discb;nged four of the accused persons 
sent up by the Police on the 14th March. On the 15th, how~ 
ever, that is the next day, 1\1r. G., the District Magistrate, 
sent for Babu A. K. B. while he was trying some of these 
cases and had half-an-hollc's conversation with him. Babu 
A. K. B.'s attitude towards the public Ale/a people changed 
considerably after this interview with his official superior and 
he convicted three of the defendants as being members of an 
unliiwful assembly and sentenced them to pay a fi~e of 
Rs. 20, the sentence being unappealable. Two persons who 
had been charged by the Police with obstructing them, the 
.ame Deputy Magistrate sentenced to 31 days' rigorous im­
prisonment, declining to summon Babu S. C. D. who had 
been cited as..an important witness by the defence. These 
two persons appealed to the Sessions Judge who acquitted 
them both disbelieving the evidence ~dduceci against th~ 



The SessiOiis' Ju4ge concluded his judgment thus:-
.. In oonoluaion, 1 thiU that the reasonable an4p1'Oper oon~01t" 

.. be put upon the (lase is that the Polioe used undue Pr6llFte tQ p~~~ 

.. people from attendlng the Mela, and that any oonfliot that m&Y~n 
"between the Polioe and the oth&rs, was the (louequenoe of the unwarra& 
"able and foroible interferenoe of the former. This is the 'Ptoba.llle inierpl''' 
"tatillll as shewn by the· evidence for the defenoe, and spectal1y "" tha 
"respeotable witness, Gobind Prosa.d Neogy, whose testimony appears en~ 
"lltled to full oredit." 

With respect to a case brought against two other persons 
belonting to!,Jhe public Mc!a, of wrongful restraint, Babu 
A. K. B. refused to acquit the accused although by law he ~as 
bound to do so when the complainant did not appear and 
gave no evidence. In consequence of Bahu A. K. B.'s deter­
mination to proceed with the case the Sessions Judge was 
appealed to, to interfere, and he at first hesitated to believe 
that any Magistrate could proceed contrary to the express 
provision of the law and suggested that a fresh application 
should be made to Babu A. K. B. on the subject. 

T~e second application to Babu A. K. B. having been 
ineffectual, the Sessions Judge passed an order to the effect 
that the Deputy Magistrate's action was contrary to law and 
that he should stay proceedings pending a reference to the 
High Court on the subject, the Sessions Judge being by law 
unable to give any relief himself. On receipt of this order 
Babu A. K. B. abruptly acquitted the accused. In another 
case originally brought by the Police Babu S. C. D., in whicb 
three persons were accused of using fraudulent weights, Babu 
A. K. B. sentenced two of the accused each to 9 monthst: 
rigorous imprisonment. 

On appeal the Sessions Ju:ige in May acquitted botft. 
prisoners on the evidence remarking that the Sub-InspectM 
had acted unfairly in making a raid on the shop-keepers ini 
the public Mcla while leaving the shop-keepers of the ri~': 
Hela " unmolested." As regards the cases brought a.s,~o.It';. 
the Potic~. ~abu A. K. B. dismissed them 'll. Meanw~ 
&abu S! C.' D., the Deputy Magistrate in charge of J.malp\l:t, 

",-
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1rtGte a letter td'Mr. G.'asking for permission to pioosecute two 
.:persons 01)·3 charge of perjury for having made 'certain"" alleJ 
gatl'ons' which Babu S. C. D. characterised as false, in a 
,petition flled before him objecting to be tried by hirp,. Mr. G. 
thereupon passed this order :-" The prose~ution 'is sanctioned 
under section 193, or any other section that may appear neces­
sary. Made over to Moulv; Mahomed, Deputy Magistrate, for 
tria1." On the same day Moulvi Mahomed, another subordi­
nate of Mr. G., equally afraid of incurring the displeasure of 
Mr ... ,G., without recording any evidence whatever<at> once, 
on the receipt of Mr. G.'s sanction issued warrants for the 
arrest of the two men concerned. A n application was there­
upon made to the High Court at Calcutta setting out all the 
facts in detail, and praying that all the con~ict~onsreferred 
to above might be quashed, and that the proceedings in 
the so-called porjury case should also be quash-Ad on the 
ground that tho whole of tho proceedings of the Magistracy 
of Maimensing were lIlala fide and perverse. The High 
Court consisting of tho Chief Justice and Mr. Justice Ci.mnder 
Madhub Ghose quashed all the convictions and proceedings of 
the different :rvhgistrate!S concerned as illegal and improper. 
In the result while all the prosecutions instituted by the 
Police and the M,lgistracy ended in the acquittal or discharge 
of the accused, nothing could be done as regards the com­
plaint preferred by the public Jlela people which had been 
summarIly rejected or di>.missed, and whose grievances there­
fore remained unredressed so far as the criminal courts are 
concerned. 

The whole of the proceedings were subsequently review­
ed "by Sir Steuart Bayley. then Lieutenant-Governor of Bengal, 
,who in an elaborate Resolution, dated 31st August 1887. after 
pointing out in detail some of the facts narrated above, 
ttass~d orders not only inflicting punishment on the different 
'!Magifitrates concerned, but also censured the Commissioner 
of the Divisioft"ror having neglected to interpose his authority' 
in order to prevent what was, in the Lieutenant-Goverqpr:a 



opinion, tt ~ve scandal. Sir Stiuart~~-Y.'f~:if'eit it~Q~be:',.iI\ 
!lduty fb examine the facts of the case mmutely a.n~ c~~,~'l~ 

the conclusion that the action of the local magisterial auth~" 
rities was wholly unjustified. The following four paragr~phS 
are extracted·from t)1e Lieutenant-Governor's Resolution and' 
special attention is drawn to the remarks contained in para­
graph X. The more important passages have been printed in 
italic type ;-

VI. The Lieutenl\nt-Governor has dealt at some length on these 
matt Ill'll, beoause he considers aption I!ko that tak'ln by Mr. G. to be mis­
ohievous. rt is Ynanifestly imp08~ibie to expect native- geutlmnen tb''()O'­

operate with a Government o/llccr in voluil~ary works of puhlic utility if 
they know that they ure liable to be overridden :lnd tbru~t asido as the Mala 
Committee has been in the present (,,<iSO, and the effects of such injudicious 
action as that under comment extp,nds far boyond the partlOular caHe oon­
oerned, for it tends to {Jrcate a breach hetwoen tho most lwtive members of 
the local public.and GoverellnHlnL nftkials, whIch CHllI\Ot fail gre,ltly to Bmit 
the influence 'and cap~leity f-lr llHefuk!'sH of the latt~r Cla~H. 

* * * * * * 
X. In the opinion of the Lieutonant-Governor th '~e pror'llndlngs 

in'Volved~ gral'c mi~1t,'r of jlldl<'ia/lIulhorif!J. Sir Sttluart Bayley does not 
see the slightest reaso!J to HUJlf""e Lha t tlwre wouli.l Jtavo heon a brt1ach of 
the peace if the PolIce had !Jot I!1terfered anrI by their action brouijht on a 
semblance of disturbance whIch was Ill,"!!, the excl1Sp for a haraRsing sorieR of 
crIminal cases, all of whieh c~n he ir,lced to the fact that the Maglsira.te of 
the DistrIct disaIlproved 01 the WdY in willen a ;11,,/'1 w.!s beillg m:wlIged by an 
independent Committee and HupcrHet!et! them WILhout authority. The whole 
case is a striking tlllt~trrlt l III u/ the d1ln,r" an.l inr.oll"P-Ilil'lt('e of tho union 
of executive and jlldicw[ jltllf:'tirll!8 in /i'e sume q[ficer when that offic~r 
happens to be indIscreet and intolerant, but as thi~ union is for the present 
essential, the prllctical lesson to be dr,lwn from it is the necllHsity for 
extreme vigila!lce on the par! of controlJing and supervising offieers and the 
magnitude of the evils atteIJdant on failure in thi~ respect. It ':8 de(lr to the 
Lieutenant-Governor thllt ywr.~ of pllti~nt anti c;al'e/ul working on p1'fl1/lltll' 

lines can scarcely undo the mi8chu/ and r<,move thl! prp.il.dic:e ag(li'lIJt 1M 
existing system produced by a single ca8e like the present. where the ill­
discreet and improper proceedings of the bcal officers are left unchecked 'b~ 
,he Commi8l>ioner. whose speeial4uty it is to lmpel'\'ise their aotion. 

.. " .. • .. * • 
XU. On a review of all thelle unfortunate proeeedilf~"'lt Is im~ 

k4lOl¥lii t~e District Officer, Mr. G., who must be held lIluinly reepont!.blt' 



far tb~m. of grave .~noJ'll 01 judgment, of wani of temper and arlliirMY ~' 
duct. The same rem~rks apply, though in a les8 degree, to·th(; ~-Dm~ 
slallal Oftlee!. while the failure of Mr. L. adequately to grallp tke respo~J1 
biliiles of his position as Oommissioner is disappointing. The Lieutenant­
Governor eees nothing to find fault with in the conduct of the Sub-DivilliODa.I 
Officer at the outset. His report to the Magistrate of the 4th November 
shews that he clearly understood the character of the Mela and the posiiion 
of the Committee, and he then gave sound and judicious advice to the 
Magi.,trate which, if followed, would have prevented all the mischief whioh 
has occurred. The Mu~istrate having rejected his recommendation in his 
ilI-consid..red order of the 18th December, the Deputy Magistrate did not 
offer ally advice when forwarumg the proceedings of the Mela Committee 
mooting on the 25th December, after he h'Ld received the ~rder to carryon 
tho Mula himself Ii., Sub-DIvisional Officer with the assistance of Ii Com­
mittee who wore "vcrridden by th,lt very order. He seems to have 
htcntlfied him~elf completely with Mr. G.'s policy, and to have fought the 
Committt", with all available weuvonA. His conduct from this time, wa,s 
a IOllg aeries of blunder~ and perverRe acts, while much of ,bis reports to 
Mr. G. amounted to diHtortion of the actu.1l facts. He had an opportunity 
ofretrollting from lll~ falso posi tion by acting on the suggestion made by 
:Mr. G. in reply to his lettpr of 5th J Mluary, but failed to avail himself of 
It. It l~ ObVIOUH howevor tllat he belilwed himself throughout to be acting 
in harmony WIth the Maglfltrate'~ VlOWS, and there was only too.. much to 
sati~ry such a bslwf on his part. Hla Honor is satisfied of the nabu'" un­
fitness fur tho pla,ce he occupies, and an arrangement will be made for his 
early removal. 

XIII. The taBit of fl'viewing Mr. G's action throughout this ca.se is a 
diffioult and ulIpleabanL one. He is an experienced offi0or who has hither­
\0 borno a fu.ir rl'putation, and the Lielltenant--Governor has anxiously 
tQ~ to takl' the JUo~t f:J.vourable view uf his cundllct which the facta will 
allow. He is however compelled to renJ.lrk that lIome points have left a 
painful imvression on his lIlind. Among these are Mr. G.'s silence on the 
subject of removal of the image and hut of Kali till attention had been 
called to it in the pres!\. although the matter was more than once referred 
to in papors which came before h11n. His remark that the Sub-Divisional 
Offio':lr was to be as~isted by the Cummittee in carrying on the Mela, the 
'Qrder being passed 011 the proceedings uf a body claiming to be the Oom~ 
mUtee which had rcmovtld the Sub-Divisional Offioer from the post of 
(Jhll.irman; the mi~l\lt\ding remark 011 the report to the Commissioner on the 

. '7th Marllh that there had been a looal dispute ab:Jut 80the rival fail'll at 
Jilmalpur, and the ambiguous orders jl;iven to the Sub-Divisional OmoN 
regarding the Mela started on the new eite. Assumillg that ih088 omi~ 

·.10J18 and ambiguiti1l8 were the rtl8ults of heedlellllncss, illere ,till re~ 



lh. faot that nothing but Mr. G:s indiscreet mterfU.enoe witb tlh .~ 
amtee'll methocl of celebrating the MdlG led to the deoiaion to ha vII an \l~~. 

official Ohair~n. and to sever themselves from the Deputy ~tra.e·. 
managemeut. Mr. G. nex~ refused to accept this decision or even tc) 
enquire into the representation made to him, and insisted OD the Deputy 
Magistrate continuing to manage the Mela and retain the funds JIIOd 
property of the institution, with which, save in the matter of withholding 
ihe use of the Government land, he had no longer !lony claim to be oon­
Bulted. Then when the rival Me/a was st!lorted, and the Police, aoting 
urlder the supervision if not at the instigation of the Deputy Magistrate, 
began a series of arbitrary arrests to obstruct it, the District Magistrate, 
instead of at oace puttin~ a stop to the prosecution and staying the a~bi­
trary proceedings of his Bubordinate, allowed the oase to prooeed. pas8ed 
the weak ano:! injudicious order to the Deputy Mflgistrate about proceedings 
under sElction 144 of the Criminal Pocedure Code, arbitrarily dismissed the 
Government Pleader and suspended the Sub-Inspector of School!! almost 
avowl'dly for the p~rt they had taken in 8Ul'Port of the rival Mcla, sanotion­
ed what hi!' ought clearly to have seen was fln unjustifiable prosecution by 
the Dtlputy Magistrate under section 193, Indian Penal Code, and 80 

through his mismanagement and remi~snt1~s, caused what before was a 
trivial and unjustifiable exhibition of local foelini', to grow into a gray. 
public B.andal rendering neces~ary the intervention of tho High Court to 
prevent further injustict'. Sir Steuart Bayley has anxiously con~idered 

whether he is justified in allowing Mr. G, to continue in the first grade of 
Magistrates and Collectors. He has decided, though with much doubt, that 
the general good servioe rendered in the pa.st by Mr. G., may now be 
counted in his favour, and that the Government may be spared the pain of 
degrading him, espeoially as after the present case he must forego all hope 
of further promotion. But Hia Honor considers that it is no longer sa.fe 
to entrust to him a District 80 important and diffioult to manage as· M'ailbim ... 
Bingb and arra.ngementa must be made BII soon as possible lor his remova.l 
to a lighter charge. 

As regards the proceedings of Babu A. K. B., the Lieut­
enant-Governor in 8 separate Resolution passed the following 
otders:-

3. As regard. the prosecution. for using false weights. it is to be feared 
that the severe lentenoe. 1II'ere.infiicted with the objeot of puniahiq men 
who in the mlltter of the Mela had taken up a.n attitude of hOitilltyto., 
Sub-Divisional Oftieer of Jamalpur; but even putting the mQllt obarita.".. 
QIlIOetruotion on the motives of the Deputy Magistrate, Sir SiiilUU't B_ttti:: 
oallJlot ~t cOlDe to the CODO]lIl1ioD that the ~ro .. oarel.sSJlO .. g4 "".1~_ 



jud~ent in thie awl the other ca888 oannot be &dequ.~J1 puniatled ~. ~ 
JJ1o.t BeVere reprimaDd. 

4. Hia Honor therefore directs that Babu A. K. B. be degracied to the 
bottom of 6th grade of the Subordinate Executive Service, and that he be 
.4epTived of h'ts first clas8 powers. He will remain at the bo.ttom of th. 
6~1P'ade, unm IJIltisfactory reports are received from hie 'superior officen 
regarding hiB work and industry. On the receipt of luch reports, the 
Lieutenant-Governor will then consider the question of restoring to him 
first cll\.ll~ powers, and moving him to the top of the sixth grade in order 
that he may become eligible for promotion to the fifth grade. The Deputy 
Magistrate will also be transferred to ths head-quarters of the District of 
Dinagepur. 

It may be mentioned here that Mr. G., the Magistrate referr­
ed to in the case, was a senior officer of many years' standing, 
allli that the Resolution from which extracts are given above 
created a great sensation among the members of the Execu­
tive Branch of the Bengal Civil Service, who as a body 
strongly disapproved of the vigorous action which Sir Steuart 
Bayley had been forced to take against a member of their 
own service. Accordingly an agitation was set on foot by 
some members of the Bengal Civil Service against the''action 
of SiT Steuart Bayley, and Mr. G. was induced to prefer an 
appeal to the Government of India against the orders of the 
Lieutenant-Governor. The Government of India was led to 
modify only that portion of Sir Steuart Bayley's order which 
directed that Mr. G. should forego all further promotion as, 
in the opinion of the Government of India, S~lct'; a direction 
as regards thp future ought not to have been made. The 
grievance of the Executive Branch of the CiVil Service in 
('onnexion with this case appeared to be that by his action 
Sir Steuart '"Bayle.., had publicly exposed the proceedings of 
a Distri~' Officer and many of them felt, and urged in tfte 
columns of the public press, that if the Government wet:.e. to . 
!flke such action as Sir Steuart Bayley had done, the prestige' 
of District Magistrate9 as a body wo\lld be lowered. As 
1'eurds tlae proceedings of the Subordinate Deputy Magis­
trates, the general feeling in Bengal was that few Deputy 
Magistrat.cQ, if placed in the position in which Babus CIS. @. D. 



.. nd A. It. B. had been pl~ced, could have :had the C()U~' 
to act differently. 

OASENO.~6 

The Contai Case-.889 
In this case Bikanta Nath Hazra, a Pleader practising in 

the Munsiff's Court in the Sub-division of Contai in the 
Disttict of Midnapur, had bought a plot of land near the 
Sub-division,\l Court-house at Contai for Rs. 1,150, and after 
his purchase he had taken possession of the land as well as 
of the building ant.! tank situated thereon. Subsequently a 
claim was asserted by the Sub-divisional Magistrate on 
behalf of the Collector of Midnapur, who represented the 
Government, that the tank in question was partly situated 1)n 
Government land. In order, however, to avoid all litigation 
Bikanta Nath Hazra in October, 1886, applied to the Sub-

". 
divisional Officer of Contai to put an end to all dispute by 
setHin,. at a reasonable rent that portion of the tank to which 
the Government had asserted a claim. Bikanta Nath Hazra 
after taking possession of the tank spent about Rs. ';\00 'in 
excavating it with the knowledge of the Sub-divisional 
Officer. Certain personal differences having arisen betw~en 
the Sub-divisional Officer a.nd Bikanta Nath Hazra" ,the 
former reported,to the Collector and Magistrate of Midnaput. 
Mr. V .• that he disapproV"ed of a portion of the tank being 
settled with Bikaota Nath Hazra. In April 1889. Mr. V"' the 
Collector of Midnapur. on the suggestion of the Sub-divisional 
Officer objected to make the settlement hf the' t.!nk with 
Bikanta Nath Hazra. whereu,eon the la:tter present~" oettain 
petitions to the COllector of Midnapur, urging that although 
dte, ctaitn of the Government Was based upon certain erron it .. 
a certain measurement paper. he was willing. in ord~.~ 
avoid all litigation. to take a settlement of the disputedt4ak : 
at a reasonable rent. To these pet'itions pikanta Nath EUt .. ", 
re~i¥ed flO reply until the,13th Ma.y.when Babu B.,.K. B.:~l 
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su~divisional Offic~r of Contai wrote to Bikanta Nath HaZh: 
to gay that the tank was to be kept Khas (in the possession 
9J l-be owner) for the present, under the orders of the Collec­
tor, a'nd it 'could nbt be settled with Bikanta Nath Hazra; the' 
letter ended with these words: "Please therefore do not 
interfere withthe tank in any way." Bikanta Nath lijizra, 
believing that 'the Collector of Midnapur had no authority to 
oust him from any portion of the said tank without a qecree 
of the Civil Court continued to remain in possession oj the 
tank. On the 21st May proceedings were instituted in the 
Court of the Second Deputy Magistrate of Contai under sec­
tion 145 of the Criminal Procedure Code, so that the Magis­
trate might be in a position to decide summarily who was in 
actual possession of the tank. After the issue of the summons 
in this section 145 case, it struck the magisterial authorities 
that such 11 case must necessarily result in Bikanta Nath Hazra 
being maintained in possession of the tank and accordingly 
the proceedings were dropped. On the 23rd May, however, an 
order was issued by Babu B. K. B., Sub-divisional Otncer of 
Contai, who purported to act as a judicial officer, calling upon 
Bikanta Nath Hazra to show cause within seven days why 
he should not be prosecuted under the Penal Code for having 
disobeyed the ofj:ier contained in his letter of the 13th May, 
namely, 'I, Please therefore do not interfere with the tank in 
any way." Bikanta Nath Hazra accordingly showed cause 
and contonded that the order in question was not lawful and 
not one which he was bound to obey, and that t,herefore he 
had committed no offence under section 188 of the Penal 
Code on the admitted facts of the case. In as' mueh as the 
Magistrate of the District had sanctioned and approved "Of 
this criminal prosecution, Babu B. K. 'B. refused to J;i~ '~e" 
case and passed the following order on the 15th June :-'{. ' p~o­
secute Bikanta Nath Hazra under 'section 186 Penal Code. 
Case made over to Babu S. P . Sircar (another D~ty MagUs .. 
trate), for trial." At the time of passing this order in reply 
'to a remark of Bikanta Nath Hazra's Pleader, ' thlt s"elt a 
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'prosecution would be vexa,tious and serve no llseful P~ 
the Deputy Magistrate remarked in open court :-".YoUdo 
not see iny peculiar"posit~on in the matter," uhdoubtedly reo. 
ferring to the prosecution having been inspired by the Magts" 
trate and Collector of the District: Mr. V. Th~ case .1'Ias 
taken up on the 15th June by Babu S. P. Sircar: who fixed it 
fotlhe 2~th of that month, but subse~uex;tt1y intimated to 
Bilqmta Nath Hazra that he should try ,~o move the High 
Corl'rt and relieve him from the unpleasant task of trying such 
a case and ~ve him time for that purpose until the loth July: , 
Bikanta Nath Hazra thereupon moved the High Court on the 
ground that the prosecution was not bona fide and that its only 
object was, by harassing him, to compel him to abandon 
possession of the tank. On the application of Bikanta Nath 
Hazra, the High Court issued a rule, and on the 29th July, 
after reading the explanations submitted by Mr. V. made the 
rule absolute setting aside all the proceedings, at the same 
time remarking: " We do not think this prosecution was 
rightli' instituted." 

Case of this description though petty in character, are by 
no means uncommon, but in the vast majority of suoh cases 
the aggrieved person would rather submit to the dictates of 
the Magistrate of the District than bear the expense ancl 
trouble of moving the High Court at the risk of ineurring the 
displea~ure of the local authorities. . , 

OA.SE NO. 1.7 

The Serajgunge Case-189( 
T1fo Zemindars in the sub-district of Serajgunge, named 

.crtandra Kishore Munshi and Dinendra Nath Sanyal, had 

.O~ altercations regarding their respective shares in the 
rebf! of cerain lands in the Serajgunge Sub-division ;'t the 
Pistrict of Pubna. Dinendra Nath S~nyal claimed a portion: 
of the Tents which the tenants were paying to Chandra 
Kishore Munshi and managed to enliSt on his behalf tM, 
'!tlpatlIies' of Mr. B., the Collector _d Magistrate of* 
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Sub-division of Serajgunge. Mr. B. summoned Chandra 
Kishore Munshi to his private residence on Sunday morning, 
7th June 1891, and told him that he would not be allowed to 
depart untH he had made up his dispute with Dinendra Nath 
Sanyal, who waS also present on the occasion, and' until he 
had signed an agreement to that effect, adding that in case of 
refusal Chandra Kishore Munshi should be at once arrested 
and sent to the lock-up on a charge ot hiring club men. 
Ch'andra Kishore Munshi was then detained without food for 
some hours and, seeing no means of escape froIT\, the prosecu­
tion with which he was threatened, he intimated in the after­
noOn his readiness to obey the Collector's orders. Mr. B. then 
wrott) uut the desired agreement which both parties signed in 
the presence of two police officers, who were called to witness 
the execution of the deed. Some days later Chandra Kishore 
Munshi on being requested to appear before the Registrar of 
Deeds, and acknowledge his signature to the agreement, 
refused to do so on the ground that the signature had been 
obtained by coercion. Thereupon Dinendra Nath »anyal 
brought a civil suit to enforce the registration of the agree­
ment and eventually obtained a decision in his favour from 
the Subordinate Judge of the District. From that decision 
Chandra Kishore Munshi appealed to the High Court at 
Calcutta on the ground, that the deed having been extorted 
from him by Mr. B. by coercion, he was not bound by law to 
register. The High COllrt, consisting of Mr. Justice Norris 
and Mr. Justice Banerjee, on the 17th August 1894, when the 
appeal came on for hearing, reversed the decision of the 
Subordinate Judge and made the followmg remarks:-

"There cannot, we think, be a shade of doubt that the defendant's signa­
ture to the agreement was obtained by duress and intimidation. Mr. 11.'8 
evid~ce is conclusive on the point. We are of opinion that the defendait.l'.' 
ligning of the agreement under the circulll8tances was IlPt an eXllOuti~n 
'hereof within the meaning of the Act: indeed it was no execution atall. 
Kxeoution must mean voluntary execution, that is, the signing of the doell-" 

meat of the executant's free wiij. Ii could not possibly be contended Ulat, 
if tar. B. had forced a pen inw the defendant's hand, held it ther9j ant lie 


